
     

 
Notice of a public meeting of 
 
Decision Session - Executive Member for Economy and Transport 

 
To: Councillor Kilbane 

 
Date: Tuesday, 11 July 2023 

 
Time: 10.00 am 

 
Venue: The Auden Room - Ground Floor, West Offices (G047) 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

Notice to Members – Post Decision Calling In: 
 
Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item* on 
this agenda, notice must be given to Democratic Services by 4:00 pm 
on Thursday 13 July 2023. 
  
*With the exception of matters that have been the subject of a 
previous call in, require Full Council approval or are urgent, which are 
not subject to the call-in provisions. Any called in items will be 
considered by the Corporate Services, Climate Change and Scrutiny 
Management Committee. 

 
Written representations in respect of items on this agenda should be 
submitted to Democratic Services by 5.00 pm on Friday 7 July. 
 
 



 

 
1. Declarations of Interest   (Pages 1 - 2) 
 At this point in the meeting, the Executive Member is asked to 

declare any disclosable pecuniary interest, or other registerable 
interest, they might have in respect of business on this agenda, if 
they have not already done so in advance on the Register of 
Interests. The disclosure must include the nature of the interest. 
 
An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it 
becomes apparent to the member during the meeting. 
 
[Please see attached sheet for further guidance for Members]. 
 

2. Minutes   (Pages 3 - 22) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the last Economy and 

Strategic Planning Decision Session held on 21 March 2023. 
 
To approve and sign the minutes of the last two Transport 
Decision Sessions held on 14 and 21 March 2023. 
 

3. Public Participation   
At this point in the meeting members of the public who have 
registered to speak can do so. Members of the public may 
speak on agenda items or on matters within the remit of the 
committee. 
 
Please note that our registration deadlines have changed to 2 
working days before the meeting, in order to facilitate the 
management of public participation at remote meetings. The 
deadline for registering at this meeting is 5:00pm on Friday 7 
July 2023. 
 
To register to speak please visit 
www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings to fill out an online 
registration form.  If you have any questions about the 
registration form or the meeting, please contact the relevant 
Democracy Officer, on the details at the foot of the agenda. 
 
Webcasting of Remote Public Meetings 
 
Please note that, subject to available resources, this remote 
public meeting will be webcast including any registered public 

 

http://www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings


 

 speakers who have given their permission. The remote public 
meeting can be viewed live and on demand at 
www.york.gov.uk/webcasts. 
 
During coronavirus, we've made some changes to how we're 
running council meetings. See our coronavirus updates 
(www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy) for more information on 
meetings and decisions. 
 

4. Bishopthorpe Road Respark Experimental TRO   (Pages 23 - 34) 
 The report is prepared to review the Experimental TRO 

introduce a ResPark Area (24/7), allowing 60 minutes parking 
for non-permit holders, in the following streets: 

 Bishopthorpe Road between Balmoral Terrace/Beresford 
Terrace and Campleshon Road/Reginald Terrace; 

 Balmoral Terrace between Bishopthorpe Road and 
Montague Street.  

 
5. Decision to Consider a Consultation to 

Propose the Removal of Cash Payments From 
the Parking Estate   

(Pages 35 - 58) 

 This report is to seek a decision by the Executive Member for 
Economy and Transport to agree to a consultation on the 
removal of cash payments to pay for parking across the car 
parking estate. 
 

6. New Lane, Acomb - Review of Existing 20mph 
Limit   

(Pages 59 - 114) 

 The report details the results of a consultation exercise with 
regard speed management proposals for New Lane, Acomb 
following on from the completion of a feasibility study and the 
receipt of a 124-signature petition. 
 

7. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Executive Member considers 

urgent under the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

Democracy Officer: Margo Budreviciute 
Telephone No- 01904 553819 

Email- margo.budreviciute@york.gov.uk 
 
 



 

 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

 Registering to speak 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports and 

 For receiving reports in other formats 
 

Contact details are set out above. 
 

 

 
 



Declarations of Interest – guidance for Members 
 
(1) Members must consider their interests, and act according to the 

following: 
 

Type of Interest You must 

Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests 

Disclose the interest, not participate 
in the discussion or vote, and leave 
the meeting unless you have a 
dispensation. 

Other Registrable 
Interests (Directly 
Related) 

OR 

Non-Registrable 
Interests (Directly 
Related) 

Disclose the interest; speak on the 
item only if the public are also 
allowed to speak, but otherwise not 
participate in the discussion or vote, 
and leave the meeting unless you 
have a dispensation. 

Other Registrable 
Interests (Affects) 

OR 

Non-Registrable 
Interests (Affects) 

Disclose the interest; remain in the 
meeting, participate and vote unless 
the matter affects the financial 
interest or well-being: 

(a) to a greater extent than it affects 
the financial interest or well-being of 
a majority of inhabitants of the 
affected ward; and 

(b) a reasonable member of the 
public knowing all the facts would 
believe that it would affect your view 
of the wider public interest. 

In which case, speak on the item 
only if the public are also allowed to 
speak, but otherwise do not 
participate in the discussion or vote, 
and leave the meeting unless you 
have a dispensation. 

 
(2) Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to the Member concerned or 

their spouse/partner. 
 

(3) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months must 
not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget calculations, 

Page 1 Agenda Item 1



and must disclose at the meeting that this restriction applies to 
them. A failure to comply with these requirements is a criminal 
offence under section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992. 

 

Page 2



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Decision Session - Executive Member for 
Economy and Strategic Planning 

Date 21 March 2023 

Present Councillor Mason 

Officers in attendance James Gilchrist, Director of Environment, 
Transport and Planning 
Simon Brereton, Head of Economic Growth 
Helene Vergereau, Traffic and Highway 
Development Manager 

 
24. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (16:00)  

 
The Executive Member was asked to declare, at this point in the 
meeting, any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registerable interests he might have in respect of business on 
the agenda, if he had not already done so in advance on the 
Register of Interests. None were declared. 
 
 

25. MINUTES (16:00)  
 
Resolved: That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 24 
January 2023 be approved as a correct record and be signed by 
the Executive Member. 
 
 

26. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (16:00)  
 
It was reported that there had been three registrations to speak 
under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme. 
 
Councillor Mark Warters spoke on agenda item 4 - Hull Road 
Verges Status. He called for a full appraisal of annex A to be 
delivered alongside a covering letter to all residents on Hull 
Road before the decision is made to allow them to consider the 
implications. He concluded by stating the negative impacts of 
this decision for residents and requesting that the Executive 
Member defers this decision.  
 

Page 3 Agenda Item 2



Gwen Swinburn also spoke on agenda item 4. She asked the 
Executive Member to defer the decision to allow the Council to 
receive legal advice and approach landowners on Hull Road to 
compensate them. She also spoke about private grass areas in 
the Hull Road ward being cut by public funds.  
 
Ben Rich spoke on agenda item 5 - Inclusive Growth Fund – 
Final Allocation. He spoke on the ‘Big Tent Ideas and Festival 
Summit’ and explained its purpose was to stimulate 
regeneration and support left behind communities through 
political engagement. He listed the organisations involved in the 
event and the speakers attending before thanking the Council 
for considering to support the event. 
 
 

27. HULL ROAD VERGES STATUS (16:09)  
 
The Executive Member considered a report which detailed the 
Planning Authority’s position on the status of the Hull Road 
verges, located between Nursery Gardens and number 315 Hull 
Road (to the north of the A1079). 
 
The Traffic and Highway Development Manager detailed the 
report and explained that the status of the Hull Road verges 
needed clarifying, with some parts proposed to become adopted 
highway. She then stated that the Council was also planning on 
serving notices and writing to residents and that they had a right 
to object to the process.  
 
In response to questions from the Executive Member, the Traffic 
and Highway Development Manager and Director of 
Environment, Transport and Planning stated that: 

 The Planning Authority’s position needed clarifying to 
determine what it would deem the land to be in planning 
terms, if it was going to be developed. As the land on the 
verges is not within the curtilage of the dwellings, the use 
of the verge for parking would be a change of use of the 
land and would require planning permission. 

 If residents objected to the process, it would then be 
independently looked at and the Council could take the 
decision further if necessary or negotiate with landowners. 

 

Page 4



The Executive Member requested that, outside of serving 
notices, Officers engage with residents further so that they were 
fully informed of the decision, which they agreed to do. 
 
Resolved: 

i. That the Planning Authority’s position on the status of the 
Hull Road verges, located between Nursery Gardens and 
number 315 Hull Road (to the north of the A1079), subject 
to any valid objection received in relation to the adoption 
process pursuant to Section 228 Highways Act 1980, be 
approved. 

Reason: To provide clarity to existing and future landowners. 

ii. That the attached draft Director Decision presenting the 
proposed approach to the adoption of part of the verges 
as highway maintainable at the public expense pursuant 
to Section 228 Highways Act 1980, be noted. 

Reason: To protect the rights of highway users and provide 
clarity to existing and future landowners. 
 
 

28. INCLUSIVE GROWTH FUND – FINAL ALLOCATION (16:16)  
 
The Executive Member considered a report which provided a 
final update on the actions set out in the Inclusive Growth Fund.  
 
The Head of Economic Growth presented the report and 
detailed the eight inclusive growth fund projects across the city 
alongside the work they completed and the benefits they 
brought.  
 
He concluded by explaining that £50k of the ‘Greening our 
Retail Estate’ funding remained unallocated and that there was 
sufficient funding to provide a grant of £30k be provided to 
support the York ‘Big Tent Ideas and Festival Summit’ in June 
2023, should the Executive Member be minded to do so. He 
noted that the balance of unallocated funding would be used to 
support pressures elsewhere in the Council budget. 
 
The Executive Member praised the progress made and; 
 
Resolved: 

i. That the progress that has been made on the agreed 
Inclusive Growth Fund projects be noted. 

Page 5



Reason: So that the Council nurtures a pipeline of projects that 
positively address inclusive growth in the City of York. 

ii. That a final allocation of £30k from the inclusive growth 
fund to support inclusive growth aspects of the Big Tent 
Festival be made. 

Reason: To support inclusive growth in the City of York. 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Mason, Executive Member 
[The meeting started at 4.00 pm and finished at 4.23 pm]. 

Page 6



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Decision Session - Executive Member for 
Transport 

Date 14 March 2023 

Present Councillors D'Agorne and Craghill 
 

Officers Present Neil Ferris – Corporate Director of Place 
Tracey Carter - Director of Housing, Economy 
and Regeneration 
James Gilchrist - Director of Environment, 
Transport and Planning 
Dave Atkinson – Head of highways and 
Transport 
Cathryn Moore – Legal Manager - Projects 
Helene Vergereau - Principal Development 
Control Engineer (Planning) 
Darren Hobson - Traffic Management Team 
Leader 
Andy Vose - Transport Policy Manager 

 

59. Declarations of Interest (10:01) 
 
The Executive Member was asked to declare, at this point in the 
meeting, any personal interests, not included on the Register of 
Interests, or any prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests 
that he might have had in respect of business on the agenda. 
He confirmed he had none. 
 
 

60. Exclusion of Press and Public (10:01) 
 
Resolved: That the press and public be excluded from the 
meeting during the consideration of annexes D and E for 
Agenda Items 5 minute 63 on the grounds that they contain 
information relating to individuals and the financial affairs of 
particular persons. This information is classed as exempt under 
Paragraphs 1 and 2 of Schedule 12A to Section 100A of the 
Local Government Act 1972 (as revised by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006). 
 
 
 

Page 7



61. Minutes (10:03) 
 
Resolved: That the minutes of the Decision Session of the 

Executive Member for Transport held on 21 
February 2023 be approved and signed by the 
Executive Member as a correct record. 

 
 

62. Public Participation (10:03) 
 
It was reported that there had been 10 registrations to speak at 
the meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme. 
 
Cllr Warters spoke on the petition regarding Noddle Hill. He 
stated that the Council had created the lay-by issue by expelling 
the family from an official site and needed to solve the housing 
issues of the family to end the encampment.  
 
Gwen Swinburn requested that the Council stop implementing 
LTN’s and Residents Parking schemes until new strategy was 
developed. She also raised concerns regarding Monkgate which 
she felt had been changed to favour cyclists but endangered 
pedestrians.  
 
Cllr Smalley welcomed the work undertaken on the Active 
Travel Programme and asked that the project to deliver part two 
of active travel work on Shipton Road be undertaken.  
 
Kate Ravilious requested that active travel projects identified in 
York’s Local Cycling & Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) be 
delivered and funding not be deferred. They also stated the 
need for accessible access between Copmanthorpe and 
Bioshopthorpe across the railway.  
 
Carol Green stated that Network Rail were taking the cheapest 
option in relation to the Copmanthorpe Level Crossing. She 
noted the importance of the route for local residents and those 
travelling the Eborway. She confirmed that wheelchair users 
could use the current crossing and a new crossing could 
improve accessibility rather than reducing it.  
 
Gill Shaw stated that the Noddle Hill Lay-by used to be used by 
commercial vehicles and could be used again. She asked why 
the family encamped on the lay-by who the Council was not 

Page 8



recommending to move were removed from official site without 
plans for where the family would relocate too.  
 
Cllr Doughty spoke in favour of delivering a cycle route between 
Strensall and Huntington which could promote a move to cycling 
for Huntington Secondary school pupils. He noted that a 
feasibility had already been undertaken some years ago into the 
delivery of the route which he was happy to share with officers if 
required.  
 
Cllr Melly stated that she considered the LCWIP to be five years 
late and was now being rushed through with the Council having 
delivered substandard transport infrastructure during the current 
administration.  
 
Cllr Orrell spoke on the need for a Low Traffic Neighbourhood 
for The Old Village, Huntington. He outlined issues residents 
had raised and the support for interventions including some 
level of closure to traffic.  
 
 

63. Response to petition regarding Noddle Hill lay-by (10:30) 
 
Officers outlined that the unauthorised encampment at 
Noddle Hill layby had many complicated legal elements that had 
made reaching a resolution challenging. It was noted that the 
recommendations outlined short, medium, and long term 
proposals for the use of the layby.  
 
The layby was confirmed to be part of the old alignment of the 
road and its current land ownership was not known. Officers 
confirmed that unknown ownership of older roads was not 
uncommon and that work was being undertaken to identify 
ownership. It was confirmed that the stopping up order which 
was intended to lead to a green space in place of the layby 
would be subject to public consultation.  
 
The Executive Members noted in accordance with their decision 
at minute 62 that they would enter private session to consider 
the exempt annexes within the report at 10:40 and returned and 
resumed the meeting in the public session at 10:44.  
 
The Executive Members noted that they recognised residents’ 
concerns and welcomed the actions proposed by officers and 
agreed to the recommendations in the report. They also 

Page 9



welcomed the new sites for Gypsy and Traveller 
Accommodation in the York Local Plan.  
 
Resolved:  
 

i. Noted the E-Petition received;  
ii. Noted the interim situation for the unauthorised 

encampment at Noddle Hill; 
iii. Noted the future work proposed to increase the 

amount of Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation as 
part of the delivery phase of the Local Plan which 
will enable relocation of the encampment to an 
authorised site; 

iv. Noted the establishment of a Project Manager post 
by the Corporate Director of Place in Consultation 
with the Executive Member for Housing in regard to 
already committed S106 funds and to commence 
early engagement with the developers of strategic 
sites and commence planning for the provision of 
additional pitches; 

v. Agreed, subject to land ownership questions being 
clarified, to commence the process to stop up the 
Noddle Hill layby as being surplus to highway 
requirements and develop proposals for a green 
area to improve the amenity of the adjoining area. 

 
Reason: To ensure the long-term solution to the unauthorised 

encampment at Noddle Hill and reflect the legal 
protections afforded to the individuals on the 
encampment. 

 
 

64. PROW: Public Footpath Copmanthorpe No 2. Proposed 
closure of Copmanthorpe Level Crossing - update (10:50) 
 
Officers introduced the report noting that Network Rail were 
continuing with their initial proposals for the closure of 
Copmanthorpe Level Crossing and a new step footbridge to 
replace it. This decision by Network Rail to proceed with a 
stepped bridge is been made despite concerns raised about the 
equality impacts of a stepped bridge and the decision taken 
previously by the Executive Member to reject an application 
submitted under s119A of the Highways Act 1980 - Rail 
Crossing Diversion Order as the proposed footbridge would not 
provide provisions to allow disabled pedestrians to use the 

Page 10



crossing. The footbridge proposal being unlight and enclosed 
was also considered to be an unsafe crossing particularly at 
night. 
 
The Executive Member noted that he felt that Network Rail were 
not meeting their duty to remove barriers to walking and cycling 
particularly for disabled users. He also noted that a new housing 
development nearby would likely increase the use of any 
crossing. 
 
Resolved:  
 

i. To delegate authority to the Director for 
Environment, Transport and Planning in 
consultation with the Executive Member for 
Transport, in accordance with paragraphs 15 or 16 
of this report (as the case may be), to: 

a) formulate and submit an objection to the 
TWA Order; or 
b) formulate and submit a representation in 
support of the TWA Order; or 
c) submit a representation that neither 
supports nor objects to the TWA Order i.e. 
effectively adopt a neutral position with no 
positive case in relation to the principle of the 
TWA Order. 

 
Reason: So that an outline decision can be made to Network 

Rail’s TWA Order application before the restrictions 
of the pre-election period come into effect, by giving 
specific delegation to an Officer to complete and 
submit the detail of the relevant submission on 
behalf of the Council, within the 6 week statutory 
consultation period, or to review that decision if 
circumstances change. 

 
65. Respark Schemes and Low Traffic Neighbourhood Updates 

(10:55) 
 
The process for Residents Parking Schemes were outlined, 
noting the role of petitions and requests to start the process to 
consider an area for residents parking. The process for 
implementing a Low Traffic Neighbourhood it was noted was 
less clear due to the broader nature of implementing, in these 
cases Officers confirmed that they were always considered by 

Page 11



the Executive Member and experimental trails were 
implemented to ensure they were working effectively.  
 
To plan how to consider and deliver Low Traffic 
Neighbourhoods where they were desired it was agreed that 
they would be filtered into a work stream with Residents Parking 
Schemes to identify which to progress as standalone projects 
and which to be considered as part of a wider piece of work.  
 
Resolved:  
 

i. Agreed that petitions submitted will be filtered into 
one steam of work and progressed in the order that 
they are received.  

 
Reason: This will help provide a better oversight of work 

programs and not give an unrealistic timescale for 
progression of requests. 

 
 

66. Dft Micromobility trial update (11:03) 
 
Jessica Hall from TIER Operations Ltd who have been 
delivering the Council’s micromobility trail joined the meeting to 
discuss the report. She noted that TIER were now the world’s 
largest provider of micromobility and that York was the 
companies first city. She confirmed that there remained 
potential for expansion of the trail in areas such as Acomb and 
Huntington. She also confirmed that demand for the use of e-
scooters and e-bikes continues to increase.  
 
The Executive Member thanked TIER for their work with the 
Council on the trail and welcomed the potential for expansion 
including to areas outside of the outer ring road. Noting that the 
trail was in its final year it was confirmed that no guidance from 
Government had yet been published.  
 
Resolved:  
 

i. Noted that a report will be presented to the 
Executive Member for Transport once further details 
of the legislative changes impacting micromobility 
are announced; 

 

Page 12



Reason: The Council requires information from Government 
legislation regarding the changes impacting 
micromobility. 

 
 
 
 

67. York Local Cycling & Walking Infrastructure Plan Update 
(11:13) 
 
The Executive Member considered the progress report and 
welcomed the evidence base being developed and looked 
forward to a LCWIP being adopted. The Executive Member 
noted that schemes such as the changes to Coppergate which 
had reduced traffic had seen an increase in footfall for shops in 
the area. It was noted that the Systra Ltd proposals would go to 
public consultation after the local elections in May 2023. Officers 
confirmed that once the LCWIP was adopted it would be a living 
document that would be updated with new schemes when 
ready.  
 
Resolved:  
 

i. Acknowledged the progress made to date towards 
completion of York’s LCWIP. 

 
Reason:  To ensure the Executive Member is up to date and 

to enable him to highlight any concerns. 
 
 
 
 
 

Cllr A D’Agorne, Executive Member for Transport 
[The meeting started at 10.00 am and finished at 11.27 am]. 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Decision Session - Executive Member for 
Transport 

Date 21 March 2023 

Present Councillors D'Agorne 

Officers in Attendance James Gilchrist - Director of Transport, 
Planning and Environment 
Dave Atkinson - Head of Highways and 
Transport 
Christian Wood - Smart Transport 
Programme Manager 
Tony Clarke - York Central Lead 
Shoaib Mahmood – Transport Project 
Manager 
David Walker - Head of Customer, Resident 
and Exchequer Services 

 

69. Declarations of Interest  
 
The Executive Member was asked to declare, at this point in the 
meeting, any personal interests, not included on the Register of 
Interests, or any prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests 
that he might have had in respect of business on the agenda. 
He confirmed he had none. 
 
 

70. Public Participation  
 
It was reported that there had been 10 registrations to speak at 
the meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme. 
 
Gwen Swinburn noted that she felt highways related decisions 
had not been brought to the Transport Decision Session. She 
asked that a metal railing be installed on Monkgate to make it 
safer for pedestrians. Finally she asked for clarification on legal 
status of the tarmac work the Council had undertaken on 
Springfield Close which was private land. 
 
Cllr Melly outlined her disappointment in both the report on the 
Acomb Road scheme and the lack of progress in the Active 
Travel Programme. She raised concern that the Leeman Road 
closure was going ahead despite work to improve the riverside 

Page 15



path not being completed. Finally she enquired as to why 
Hospital Fields Road was having Active Travel work undertaken 
when it scored lower other areas that were not being worked on.  
 
Cllr K Taylor raised concerns regarding the riverside path which 
did not have funding assigned to complete all improvements 
outlined for the route, which was a key route into town for 
residents losing access through Leeman Road. He also raised 
concern that the Council recommendations would not solve 
issues on Acomb Road.  
 
Kate Ravilious raised concern that the Council’s active travel 
scheme were not following the Councils own LCWIP. They 
raised concern that the Council was bidding for millions of 
pounds for schemes over which it expected to be assigned and 
were delivering some schemes which didn’t improve cycling. 
Noting that Hospital Fields Road was not in the Council’s top 10 
priorities they asked that the Council drop the scheme and 
prioritise elsewhere.  
 
Lucy Steels-Walshaw part of Leeman Road Residents 
association. She thanked Ward Councillors for their help and 
noted concern that access to the city centre was not being 
improved for Leeman Road Residents who would lose their road 
into the city. She welcomed improving lighting and CCTV on the 
riverside path but was concerned the Council did not present a 
plan B should the Council not receive sufficient funding to finish 
improving the path.  
 
Joanna Gawthorpe highlighted the work undertaken at Acomb 
Road School to promote active travel. She highlighted concerns 
about safety for pupils attending the school currently and asked 
for improvements to area to make it safer to walk and cycle.  
 
Zenia Chapman raised concerns that the Council’s 
recommendations regarding Acomb Road would not make it 
safer for pedestrians and cyclists. She highlighted that poor pay 
had prevented the employing of a new crossing officer. She 
noted her concern that it would take a child being harmed by 
traffic for sufficient action to be taken.  
 
David Finch Chair of Fiends of Leeman Park outlined that the 
riverside path was important but was left out of the York Central 
project, despite this he noted that the inspector expected the 
Council to improve the path as part of the work being done for 

Page 16



the York Central project. Therefore he noted his disappointment 
that he felt the Council had reduced plans for improving the path 
and asked that for assurances that the Council would deliver all 
the improvements to the path even if its bid for funding was 
unsuccessful.  
 
Louise Woodruff speaking regarding the Acomb Road Scheme 
noted there had not been a Crossing Patrol Officer for two years 
and didn’t expect the role to be filled due to poor pay. She 
asked for school warning signs to be installed in the area and 
that a 20 MPH speed limit be introduced like around other 
schools.  
 
Lynette Mills speaking on behalf of the York Cycle Campaign 
outlined that the campaign felt the Council had failed to improve 
active travel in York and had failed to use allocated funding. 
They noted that Hospital Fields Road was not identified as a 
priority in the Councils LCWIP and that funding should be 
allocated to areas identified as higher priority.  
 

71. Acomb Road Safety Update  
 
Officers outlined the report and confirmed that  
road safety was taken seriously with an aim to deliver 
appropriate and proportionate measures. It was confirmed that 
concerns were raised regarding Acomb Road and Hamilton 
Drive and that petitions were being collected by residents. 
Officers confirmed from sight visits that there was an increased 
level of traffic around school drop off time. It was confirmed that 
additional resource was being put in place to appoint a new 
Crossing Patrol Officer and that work was being undertaken with 
HR to review the job role as it was confirmed that the Council 
was struggling to appoint to the post across the city.   
 
It was confirmed that the Council did not have recent speed 
data for the streets in question and would aim to collect data to  
identify locations of most concern and would include as part of 
the Acomb Road active travel scheme.  
 
The Executive Member considered and approved the 
recommendations adding to recommendation 11 the council 
advertise the Traffic Regulation Order should additional yellow 
lining be required on West Bank and to delegate to the Director 
of Environment, Transport and Planning to implement if there 
are no objections. 

Page 17



 
Resolved: 
 

i. That the council promote and relaunch the existing 
campaign to recruit a school crossing patroller on 
Acomb Road; 

ii. That officers work with HR to review school crossing 
patrol role and terms and conditions; 

iii. That a review of the policy for pedestrian crossings 
and bring to an Executive Member decision session; 

iv. To collect speed data currently on Acomb Road to 
determine the level of compliance with the 30mph 
limit; 

v. Add the section of Acomb Road in the vicinity of the 
crossing points to Acomb Primary school and West 
Bank park to the Speed Limit review programme to 
see whether the speed limit can be reduced to 
20mph; 

vi. Ensure that speed limits review form part of the 
considerations of the Acomb Road Active Travel 
scheme; 

vii. Noted Ward scheme to improve conditions for 
cyclists and Safer route to school schemes on 
Hamilton Drive; 

viii. Ensure the 30mph speed limit issue is reviewed as 
part of these schemes on Hamilton Drive; 

ix. Officers to explore the feasibility of crossing 
improvements on Acomb Road including collecting 
the data on pedestrian and traffic movements to see 
if this meets the criteria in Department for Transport 
guidance and Council policy for a safe place for a 
pedestrian crossing; 

x. That a traffic modelling review the impact of a 
banned right turn from Grantham Drive onto Acomb 
Road be undertaken; 

xi. Delegate to the Director of Environment, Transport 
and Planning a review of the lining on West Bank 
and advertise a Traffic Regulation Order. Delegate 
to the Director Environment, Transport and Planning 
for implementation if there are no objections; 

xii. Implement signage improvements where identified; 
 
Reason:  To respond to resident concerns around road safety 

in the area. 
 

Page 18



 
72. Active Travel Programme Update  

 
Officers introduced the Active Travel Programme update and 
confirmed that the existing priorities for the programme had 
been agreed by the Executive in 2022. They noted that 
allocations for tranche 4 Active Travel funding was likely to be 
lower than previous allocations due to central government 
budget cuts. It was noted that many schemes in the LCWIP 
were at an early stage which was why some lower priority 
schemes which were ready for consultation were currently being 
progressed. Officers confirmed that in conversations with Active 
Travel England that bids should be separated to focus on those 
that are ready for delivery and those that were longer term 
schemes.   
 
The Executive Member considered a number of schemes in the 
programme including the Riverside Path which was raised 
during public participation. Officers confirmed that residents had 
been consulted with responses focusing on additional lighting 
for the path as well as raising and widening the path to reduce 
the number of days the path was unpassable due to flooding. 
Officers confirmed that they were recommending to deliver in 
stages focusing on affordable parts of the scheme such as 
lighting and CCTV. Should the Council not be successful in 
getting sufficient funding to deliver the other parts of the scheme 
it was confirmed that a new report would be brought to a 
Transport Decision Session for consideration how to move 
forward. Lighting underneath Scarborough Bridge was 
discussed and the Executive Member asked that it be included 
in work on the Riverside Path. Signage was also discussed 
around Scarborough Bridge.   
 
Resolved: 
 

i. Noted the update on the progress of the Active 
Travel Programme contained within this report; 

 
Reason:  To provide information to the public and the Member 

on the current status of the Active Travel 
Programme. 

 
ii. Noted the update contained within this report 

covering the recent ATF4 bid submission; 
 

Page 19



Reason:  To provide information to the public regarding the 
request for funding submitted to Active Travel 
England. 

 
iii. Approved the “A19 Phase 1 Interventions” Project 

Outline (Option 1). It should be noted that a decision 
on the implementation of the crossing is not being 
sought at this time. A further public decision on the 
proposals will be presented after feasibility work has 
been completed; 

 
Reason:  To agree the scope of the project, to ensure it is 

aligned with stakeholder expectations. 
 

iv. Noted the results of the Riverside Path Consultation, 
the initial feasibility work undertaken by Aecom and 
the current funding gap; 

 
Reason:  To understand the options for improving the route 

and the priorities for the local residents. 
 

v. Approved the progression of Option 2 to deliver the 
scheme on a phased basis commencing with the 
higher priority affordable items (lighting & CCTV) 
and undertake further development work within the 
current budget. 

 
Reason: Progressing with Phase 1 of the path upgrade 

(lighting and CCTV) allows progress to be made 
onsite whilst further work is undertaken on the 
feasibility of the full scheme. 

 
 

73. Active Travel Programme – Hospital Fields Road Scheme  
 
Officers introduced the report outlining the scheme, it was noted 
that Hospital Fields Road was part of the east west cycle link so 
was a strategic route for the city. The Executive Member was 
presented with three options for delivery and enquired about the 
proposals having segregation one way. Officers confirmed that  
this due to the limited road space with industrial vehicles. The 
Executive Member enquired about the junction joining Fulford 
Road and altering the traffic signals and cycle lane interface to 
make it safer for cyclists going straight on. It was confirmed that 
the junction had not been within the scope of the scheme and 

Page 20



therefore the Executive Member requested that these be 
reviewed by officers and that schemes be brought back to an 
Executive Member decision session.  
 
Resolved: 
 

i. Approved the advertisement of amendments to the 
Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) to implement the 
parking restrictions required by all design options; 

ii. Noted the Executive Members preference for 
scheme A; 

iii. Officers were requested to expand the scope of the 
project to include the traffic signals, particularly for 
cyclists, at the junction of Hospital Fields Road and 
Fulford Road. 

iv. Officers were asked to review how the cycle lane 
interfaces with the advance stop line especially for 
cyclists going straight on from Hospital Fields Road. 

v. Development of the scheme to be brought back to a 
future decision session before progressing to a 
detailed design stage. 

 
Reason:  To respond to the comments made by the public to 

improve safety. 
 

 
 

74. Resident Parking (Recommendations from Scrutiny)  
 
Officers introduced the report, it was confirmed that the 
Economy and Strategic Planning Policy and Scrutiny Committee 
had undertaken a review into parking and have made a series of 
recommendations for the Executive Member to consider.  
 
It was confirmed that some non-digital users were still struggling 
to access paper parking permits and officers confirmed that they 
would encourage individuals to get in touch with the Council 
about these problems. It was noted that the Council recorded 
customer services calls so problems raised in calls could be 
reviewed. Officers were also asking that the Parking User Group 
to undertake additional work around the customer portal. It was 
also confirmed that call volume regarding parking permits had 
begun to fall suggesting less individuals accessing these 
permits were still having issues.  
 

Page 21



The Executive Member considered the recommendations 
outlined in the report and agreed with these recommendations.  
 
Resolved: 
 

i. Noted the response to the scrutiny 
recommendations detailed within paragraph 25 of 
this report; 

ii. Noted that the council’s use of digital services is to 
ensure that the customer centre resources can be 
targeted at those customers who need the most 
support; 

iii. Noted that non digital customers can access paper 
visitor permits through the customer centre; 

iv. Noted a parking user group has been set up and the 
first meeting has occurred; 

v. Noted that a new version of the customer parking  
portal will go live in the summer;  

vi. The parking user group be requested to undertake 
some early testing of the customer portal of the new 
system before it goes live to the public. 

vii. Requested that the parking user group reviews the 
customer journey for non-digital customers of the 
new system particularly around visitor vouchers. 

viii. Recommendations from the user group will be 
reported to a future Executive Member Decision 
Session taking into account any budgetary 
implications of the recommendations. 

ix. Noted the lesson learnt of the need for early 
engagement and lessons learnt. 

 
Reason:  To respond to the recommendations of the Economy 

and Place Scrutiny Committee to ensure lessons are 
learned to improve the approach to parking for 
customers and residents. 

 
 
 
 
 

Cllr A D’Agorne, Executive Member for Transport 
[The meeting started at 10.00 am and finished at 1.30 pm]. 

Page 22



 

 

  
 

   

 
Decision Session – Executive Member for 
Economy & Transport 
 

11 July 2023 

Report of the Director of Environment, Transport and Planning  
 
Bishopthorpe Road Experimental TRO Res Park 
 
Summary 

 
1. The report is prepared to review the Experimental TRO introduce a 

ResPark Area (24/7), allowing 60 minutes parking for non-permit holders, 
in the following streets: 

 Bishopthorpe Road between Balmoral Terrace/Beresford Terrace 
and Campleshon Road/Reginald Terrace; 

 Balmoral Terrace between Bishopthorpe Road and Montague 
Street.  

 
Recommendations 

 
2. The Executive Member is asked to:  

 
i. Approve the making of the permanent Order, so the Residents’ 

Priority Parking will continue to operate as it has during the 
experimental Period. 
 
Reason: This will provide permit parking for residents, with an 
availability of parking for 1 hour for Non-Permit Holders, such as 
visitors and patients of the surgery. 
 

ii. Approve an amendment to the R58 Residents Priority Parking 
Scheme to allow Medical Practitioners from Gillygate Practice, 
Southbank Medical Centre, 175 Bishopthorpe Road to apply for 
Doctors Permits. 
 
Reason: This will help the local surgery provide a more efficient 
patient service. 

 
 

Page 23 Agenda Item 4



 

Background 
 
3. The Experimental TRO was introduced in response to concerns 

expressed by the resident in the consultation period of the draft Order as 
the marked parking bays which were originally considered for the area, 
which were not seen to provide a sufficient area for the residents. The 
introduction of allowance for 1 hour parking for Non-Permit Holders was 
to address the need for visitor parking but also with consideration of the 
operation of surgery on the corner of Bishopthorpe Road/Balmoral 
Terrace. 
 

4. Bishopthorpe Road between Balmoral Terrace and Campleshon Road, 
has not historically had a residents parking scheme. Along this section 
vehicles are parked on both sides of the road, given the limited width of 
the carriageway, this results in footpath parking, which also restricts width 
of the footpath in the area. The inclusion of the area within the Residents 
Parking Zone on an Experimental basis was introduced to obtain a clear 
picture on if parking on both sides of the road was required for residential 
needs. 

 
Consultation  
 

5. The original proposal was to introduce marked bays with sections of ‘No 
Waiting at any time’ restrictions (Annex A). The residents along this 
section of Bishopthorpe Road were of the opinion was that this would 
reduce the availability of parking to an insufficient level. The plan was 
then amended to include parking on both sides of the street and provide 
60-minute parking for non-permit holders, on an experimental basis, so 
the Council could review the parking habits of the residents and visitors. 
 

6. The Experimental Order was for 18 months and allows for residents to 
provide comments/representation on the live scheme. This gives the 
Council real life data on who the proposal operates. The Council 
received three representations (Annex B) in relation to the area of 
Experimental Traffic Regulation order following the extension of the R58 
Residents Parking Scheme, one was from a resident of that section, 
there was also a complaint that this would make the bus stop 
inaccessible and the other one was from the Surgery with the area. 
 

7. The resident commented that they were happy with the introduction of 
the scheme, which had eased the parking pressures that residents had 
previously complained about. The resident did raise concerns that the 
scheme will only be as successful as the enforcement that is undertaken, 

Page 24



 

which is the case with all parking restrictions and the Civil Enforcement 
Officer do respond to complaints quickly. 
 

8. A resident did raise a concern about the parking on both sides of the 
road does create an issue for the bus service as it makes the stop 
inaccessible with vehicles parking too close to the stand, meaning that 
the bus needs to load/unload passengers on the carriageway. The 
Experimental Order would do nothing to ease this issue, as there is still 
availability of parking the full length. 
 

9. The local surgery raised concerns about patient access to the surgery 
and the access of their doctors/nurse as they do move around the 
different surgeries within the group and maybe required to undertake 
home visits. The resident’s Parking scheme did not allow for 
doctors/nurses to apply for permits other than community permits which 
should only be used when undertaking home visits and not eligible to be 
used when visit their regular place of work. They have requested to be 
included within the eligibility of the zone. 
 

10. There was also a concern about patient access to the surgery, but the 
area of the Experimental Order provides available parking for non-permit 
holders for 1 hour, which should give sufficient time for appointments. 
 

11. The Council did also receive number of representations about the area of 
the permanent extension of the R58 Residents’ parking scheme, which 
were outside of the scope of this experimental Order, these related to: 
 

 Late notification of start date of the scheme 

 Changes to historic signage, due to changes to zone entry/exit 
points 

 Neighbouring streets not able to apply for permits 
 
These issues were outside the scope of this report, so those comments 
have not been considered within this report. Although if the 
recommended option is approved, it is proposed to review the signage 
for the whole area, to ensure the area has adequate signage to 
undertake enforcement of non-compliance. 

 
Options 
 

12. Option 1: Approve the making of the permanent Order, so the Residents’ 
Priority Parking will continue to operate as it has during the experimental 
period. This is the recommended option, as it will provide permit parking 

Page 25



 

for residents, with an availability of parking for 1 hour for Non-Permit 
Holders such as visitors and patients of the surgery. 
 

13. Option 2: Remove the area from the Residents Parking Scheme and do 
not approve the making of the permanent Order, which will remove the 
availability for Residents’ Priority Parking from within the Experimental 
Traffic Regulation order area. This is not the recommended option as it 
will create an area of unrestricted parking in the middle of the Residents 
Parking Scheme, which would be against the wishes of the residents. 
 

14. Option 3: Approve the making of the permanent Order and propose a 
formal review of the area to introduce ‘No Waiting at any time’ 
Restrictions, to reduce the availability of parking for residents. This would 
help to remove the requirement of footpath parking, along this stretch of 
highway. This is not a recommended option as it would not listen to 
residents. 
 

15. Option 4: Approve an amendment to the Residents Parking Scheme to 
allow Medical Practitioners from Gillygate Practice, Southbank Medical 
Centre, 175 Bishopthorpe Road to apply for Doctors Permits. This is a 
recommended option as it will help the local surgery provide a more 
efficient patient service. 

 
Analysis 

 
16. The recommended option to make the area of Residents’ Parking 

permenant will listen to the views of the residents and provide a larger 
available area for residents parking whilst also providing access for 
parking to the nearby surgery, although this will still create and issue of 
footpath parking.   
 

17. The concern about footpath parking in this location has been raised due 
to safety concerns relating to safe routes to school. Following the 
introduction of the Experimental Order, officers undertook initial 
observations of the area, which showed the area continued to be heavily 
parked on by residents but as the scheme has bedded in some residents 
of the experimental area have begun to park their vehicles in 
neighbouring streets, which has reduced the demand on the area. 
 

18. Council Officers did undertake a survey of the area, which did show a 
reduction in parking along the area.  The available level of parking along 
the section of road is dependent on how considerately the vehicles are 
parked.   

Page 26



 

 
19. The area was surveyed on 21 September 2022, at 10am and 10.30pm, 

to help review the level of parking along the stretch of road. The survey 
data (below), shows that the parking levels along the section was not at 
capacity. The vehicle details highlighted green in the survey data are 
vehicles that were parked in the area in the AM and PM. 
 

 
 
 

20. The availability of residential parking for this section has been of benefit 
for the residents, therefore any removal of the residents parking would 
have a negative effect on the residents along this section, as it provides 
an area of unrestricted parking in the middle of the residents parking.  
This would also remove the availability of parking on the adjacent streets 
for resident of that section of Bishopthorpe Road, this would lead to all 
residents returning to park along that section of Bishopthorpe Road and 
an increase in footpath parking. 
 

21. The proposed introduction of availability of Doctor Permits for medical 
practitioners at South Bank Surgery, Gillygate Practice, would help to 
provide a better service from the practice. If they have an emergency 
home visit to undertake but need to walk 20 minutes to the vehicle, this 
would have a negative impact on response time and potentially result in 
more 999 calls for ambulances which would have an impact on an 
already stretched service. 

 

Page 27



 

Council Plan 
 

22. The Council Plan has Eight Key Outcomes: 
 

 Well-paid jobs and an inclusive economy  

 A greener and cleaner city  

 Getting around sustainably  

 Good health and wellbeing  

 Safe communities and culture for all  

 Creating homes and world-class infrastructure  

 A better start for children and young people  

 An open and effective council  
 

23. The recommended proposals contribute to the Council being an open 
and effective Council as it responds to the request from the residents in a 
positive way. 
 
 

Implications 
 
24. The report has the following implications: 

 
Financial – The scheme is already operational, so planned costs for 
additional signage, although the review of signage in the area may 
create a charge, which will be funded from the Council Signing and lining 
budget if required. The ongoing enforcement and administrative 
management will need to be continued to be resourced from the income 
generated by the permits. 
 
Human Resources – The enforcement would fall to the Civil 
Enforcement Officers, this would not constitute an extra demand on their 
workload, as they are already enforcing the restriction.  

 
Equalities – The impact of the proposals on protected characteristics 
has been considered as follows: 

   Age – Positive, as the availability of doctor Permits for the local 
surgery, will increase response times for home visits and make a 
more efficient service for people of all ages; 

   Disability – Neutral as Blue Badge holders can park in Residents 
Parking areas for 3 hours for free and if they live locally, they can 
apply to have a bay provided outside their homes if required; 

   Gender – Neutral; 

Page 28



 

   Gender reassignment – Neutral; 

   Marriage and civil partnership– Neutral; 

   Pregnancy and maternity – Neutral as no changes are recommended 
to take place; 

   Race – Neutral; 

   Religion and belief – Neutral; 

   Sexual orientation – Neutral; 

   Other socio-economic groups including :  
o Carer - Neutral (see Disability); 
o Low income groups – Neutral; 
o Veterans, Armed Forces Community– Neutral. 

 
Legal – The Residents Parking scheme will continue to be enforced by 
CYC Civil Enforcement Officers and included within the Legal Traffic 
Regulation Order   

 
Crime and Disorder – no Crime and Disorder implications identified 
 
Information Technology – no implications identified  
 
Property – no Property implications identified 
 
Other –no other implications identified 

 
Risk Management – In compliance with the Council’s risk management 
strategy there is an acceptable level of risk associated with the 
recommended option. 
 

Page 29



 

 
 

Contact Details 
 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
 

Darren Hobson  
Traffic Management Team 
Leader 
Transport 
darren.hobson@york.gov.uk 
Tel No. (01904) 551367 
 
 

James Gilchrist  
Director of Environment Transport & 
Planning 
 

Report 
Approved 

 
Date 03/07/2023 

 
 

    
Specialist Implications Officer(s) List information for all 
 
Financial:                         Legal: 
Patrick looker     Cathryn Moore 
Finance Manager    Legal Business Partner (Corporate) 
01904 51633     01904 552487 
 

Wards Affected: Micklegate All  

 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Background Papers: 
 
Report to Executive Member for Transport on 22nd June 2021; Residents’ 
Parking in South Bank – Response to Draft Order 
(https://democracy.york.gov.uk/documents/s150510/Residents%20Parking%
20in%20South%20Bank%20Update%2022%2006%2021.pdf)  
 
       
 
Annexes 
 
Annex A – R58 Option 
Annex B – Representations received for ETRO 

Page 30

https://democracy.york.gov.uk/documents/s150510/Residents%20Parking%20in%20South%20Bank%20Update%2022%2006%2021.pdf
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/documents/s150510/Residents%20Parking%20in%20South%20Bank%20Update%2022%2006%2021.pdf


Annex A

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex B 

 

We live at Bishopthorpe Road and have been happy about the introduction 
of RPP in this area - it has certainly eased the problem of finding 
somewhere to park near our property. 
 
The only concern I would raise is that there are still several motorists who 
choose to ignore the regulation, particularly at times when they think they 
are unlikely to get caught - this is mainly evenings and weekends. 
 
I have tried reporting these issues to the parking hotline but have little 
confidence in their ability to respond.  For example two vehicles have been 
parked in this stretch of road this afternoon/evening (for over three hours) 
that I sincerely doubt have permission to do so 
 
If the system is to work then drivers must be made to understand that there 
are consequences for ignoring regulations - that is clearly not the case if 
there are times when they can ignore them with impunity - just as the 
majority treat the 20mph speed limit on this street. 
 

This happens, every single day on Bishopthorpe Rd, on the bus route. 
 
The motorist rules in York, we know. Here s/he blocks five modes of none-
private car transport: walking; wheelchair; pram; cycle and bus. All for the 
sake of leaving their empty metal private transport where it is convenient, 
for them. The bus cannot pull into the curb to accommodate those with 
mobility issues who wish to get on. They have to go into the road, which is 
thus blocked for cyclists. 
 
As I say, this happens every day on this stretch. 
 

Last week new parking restriction signs were erected in all the streets 
around our GP surgery on Bishopthorpe Road. It had become obvious that 
the number of cars parked on the roads and pavements were creating a 
hazard for road users and pedestrians so I have some sympathy for the 
Council's decision. 
However it is not at all clear how our doctors, staff and patients are 
supposed to manage the parking restriction of 10 minutes maximum stay. 
Although there is a bus stop near the surgery, there is no public car park 
nearby for patients or their relatives.  
Some of our patients are unable to travel by public transport anyway either 
due to infirmity (temporary or permanent) or because they have symptoms 
suggestive of covid and are not allowed on public transport. We use this 
surgery as a 'hot hub' for assessing patients with possible covid symptoms 

Page 33



Annex B 

 

as per NHS guidelines and we have no other suitable premises to do this. 
How are they now supposed to attend the surgery safely? 
The medical staff who work at the surgery are required contractually to have 
transport immediately available in case they are required to visit a patient. It 
is in the GP contract that we have to provide a visiting service for assessing 
patients where this is required on medical grounds. Some but not all the 
staff use bicycles but this is not always practical considering that we often 
have to carry life-saving equipment, and the contractual requirement to visit 
is not waived if the weather is very poor. Where do you suggest the medical 
staff park their cars where they can access them quickly if they need to 
attend a patient in an emergency (This is a fairly common circumstance 
when we are caring for palliative care patients at end of life where an 
emergency ambulance would be inappropriate). 
I suppose the restrictions have been applied to prevent people parking up 
and going into town to work all day. Is it possible to look at allowing some 
sort of relaxation on this restriction in terms of making allowances for 
workers and patients at our surgery? Otherwise we will be unable to provide 
some of our core medical services as required by our contract or our 
patients will suffer by being unable to come to see their GP 
 

 

Page 34



 

 

  
 

   

 
Decision Session – Executive Member for 
Economy & Transport 
 

 11 July 2023 

Report of the Director of Environment, Transport and Planning  
 
Decision to consider a consultation to propose the removal of cash 
payments from the parking estate.  
 
Summary 

 
1. This report is to seek a decision by the Executive Member for Economy 

and Transport to agree to a consultation on the removal of cash 
payments to pay for parking across the car parking estate. 
 

2. This leads on from the Full Council budget decision in March 2021 to 
explore the removal of cashless payments across the parking estate, 
where latterly the budget savings associated with this in terms of cash 
collections costs, were taken. 
 

3. This report is to follow on from this process and consult on the removal 
of cash payments across the parking estate. At the end of the 
consultation a further report on the findings will be brought to the 
Executive Member for consideration. 
 

Recommendations 
 

4. The Executive Member is asked to: - 

i. Approve, Option 1, the proposal to consult members of the public to 
move to cashless payment methods across the parking estate then 
bring back to a future Executive Member Decision Session for 
decision to acknowledge the consultation findings and move to 
cashless payment methods  

Reason: In order for the Executive Member to make an informed 
decision and balance up the benefits and disbenefits to drop the 
acceptance of cash payments across the parking estate, leading on from 
the March 2021 budgetary decision. 
 

Page 35 Agenda Item 5



 

 
Background 
 
5. Over the last several years the Council has seen a steady decline in 

cash payments being made for car parking, where during and post Covid 
times the use of cash as reduced to about 14% of the total amount of 
payment methods and forecast to reduce even further based on current 
trends. 
 

6. Many of the old pay and display machines only accept cash, that has led 
to the encouragement to pay by cash in these locations.  However, since 
the roll out of pay by phone across the on-street locations we have seen 
most of these locations take more through pay by phone than cash.  For 
financial years 2022/23 this equated to £113k in cash for on street 
machines but £223k in pay by phone payments. A summary table is 
below showing what was taking through each payment method over the 
last 3 financial years:- 
 

Table 1 
 

 Cash Phone Card  Total Cash Phone Card 

 £'000 £'000 £'000  £'000    

2020/21 663 918.0 1,106  2,687 25% 34% 41% 

2021/22 1,044 2,474 3,449  6,967 15% 36% 50% 

2022/23 970 3,113 3,915  7,999 12% 39% 49% 
 

 
7. If agreed this consultation would be taken forward as soon as possible 

through the normal council consultation process, which will be online, 
supported by any communications as CYC Communications 
recommend.  

 
8. Engagement will be undertaken with the Council’s Access Officer and 

the equalities groups to ensure if cash payments were to be stopped the 
full impacts can be considered e.g., people who are less inclined to use 
card, contactless or pay by phone payment methods. The initial EIA is 
included as Annex A. 
 

9. Note that through the pay by phone system, customers can also speak to 
an operator to pay for parking over the phone as well as the use of 
Paypoints which are available to allow customers to pay for their parking 
with cash where the Paypoint sign is displayed. 

 

Page 36



 

10. Another reason to consider cashless payments is that over the last few 
years we have seen a number of attacks, both planned and taken by 
chance, on parking ticket machines to steal the cash in them.  Recently 
damage and theft of a pay and display machine at Scarborough Hospital 
was recorded. Therefore, a cashless policy would eliminate any risks of 
thefts or damage associated with the stealing of cash. 

 
11. Maintenance of the machines accepting cash is also higher than those 

that take card/contactless only. This is due to the coin and paper cash 
selectors wearing down and often getting coin jams, which result in a call 
out and increase wear and tear of this component in machines.  Card 
and contactless only machines are also cheaper to purchase and 
maintain. While it is harder to come up with a precise figure Parking 
Services spent about £25k on spare parts where the older machines do 
require more attention and spare parts that are no longer manufactured. 
Maintenance is done through our 1 FTE electrician. While spare parts 
will be needed on newer machines, it is envisaged this will be reduced by 
three quarters. 

 
12. Cash collection costs would also be eliminated were we pay on average 

£45k per annum for cash collection and reconciliation, which doesn’t take 
account of staff time to check and reconcile parking payments against 
the coins and paper cash taken not to mention the reduction in vehicles 
travelling around to collect the cash and the congestion and 
environmental impacts this creates. 

 
13. Given many of our pay and display machines are well over 25 years old 

the decision to go cashless will inform the specification and procurement 
of new upgraded machines, but also help inform a decision to reduce the 
number of machines we have where the takings are less than £10k per 
annum which would mean it is not worth the council’s efforts to keep 
them running.   

 
14. The procurement of new machines is also informed on the 3G 

communication network being planned to be turned off over the next few 
years, starting this year, depending on each network provider.  Many of 
the on-street machines, including some in the car parks, are well over 25 
years old and as a result are not able to be upgraded where the data 
connection is used to download new tariffs and upload payment 
information from these machines. 

 
15. A procurement exercise will also bring in other savings including access 

to the network where at the moment each machine cost £210 per annum 

Page 37



 

to be linked to the network so it is excepted these costs will be 
significantly reduced through this exercise. 

 
16. Nationally most Local Authorities are considering moving to a cashless 

system for their parking and where most have a mixture as York has 
now. Gloucester, for example, that is likely to move to cashless.  
However, the Executive Member is reminded that there is a digital 
strategy, set under the 2014 Administration to digitise its services, which 
has led to the cooperate decision to not accept cash payments from 
customers in its buildings.  In addition, the decision was made in the 
2021 Council budget to explore cashless parking payments, so this 
report is also informed by these political decisions. 

 
Consultation  
 

17. It is proposed that the consultation on moving to cashless would be done 
via the council website and specific consultation through the York Access 
group, which in turn will help to update the Equality Impact Assessment. 
 

18. The Executive Member may also wish to see this consultation extended 
so should feel free as part of this report to suggest what other method(s) 
should be considered.  

 

Options 
 

Option 1 
 

19. Approve to the proposal to consult members of the public to move to 
cashless payment methods across the parking estate then bring back to 
a future Executive Member Decision Session for decision to 
acknowledge the consultation findings and move to cashless payment 
methods.  

 
20. This decision request is in line with the budgetary decision made in 2021 

and the clear reduction in use of cash and the ongoing cost to use cash, 
and to come back to the Executive Member with the consultation results 
that will then ask for a decision to move to cashless across the parking 
estate. Reason: the lack of cash being used now against the direct and 
indirect costs to the council for accepting cash payments, including the 
costs of cash collection, maintenance of ticket machines and risk of theft. 
 

21. In addition, the decision to go cashless will impact on other work around 
the procurement of new parking ticket machines where the specification 

Page 38



 

will state whether these are contactless/card only or they have to accept 
cash. As well as the age of many of the machines being over 25 years 
old, as the report states, the 3G network being turned off will impact on 
these older machines that can operate on 3G or 2G networks.  

 
Option 2 
 
22. The alternative is not to proceed with the consultation. In this case the 

issue of the budget decision in 2021 would be fed into the budget 
process for 24/25 for resolution. The shortfall is currently being picked up 
by a surplus income above budgeted income projections in car parking 
income. This cannot be relied upon as mitigation in the long term. 

 
Analysis 

 
23. The report is clear of the financial benefits to go cashless but as the 

decision is simply to consult on this there are no disadvantages of this, 
but this will be a factor in the next report and the decision to adopt a 
cashless payment policy. However, it should be noted that this decision 
to explore going cashless and subsequently agreed to the cash 
collection savings to be taken following the budgetary decision in 2021, 
that the ground for moving to a cashless system has been set.   
 

24. Information from the Government is also useful and a factor in taking this 
work forward, where the Department for Transport produces information 
and statistics in relation to driving license holders.  
 

25. In the 5 years from 2015 to 2019, an average of 74% of people in 
England had a full driving licence. The percentage of people with a 
driving licence went up from 71% to 74% during the period covered by 
this data. 
 

26. In relation to ages of driving license holders in 2019 the following % of 
the population, by age group, had a full driving license: 

 17-20 years – 35% hold a full driving licence 

 21-29 years – 62% hold a full driving license 

 30-39 years – 79% hold a full driving license 

 40-49 years – 86% hold a full driving license 

 50-59 years – 86% hold a full driving license 

Page 39



 

 60-69 years – 85% hold a full driving license 

 70 years plus – 67% hold a full driving license 

27. This helps show those age groups who are likely to use card, contactless 
or pay by phone options, hold the majority of licences in these age 
groups and is a growing indication showing more of these drivers are 
likely or at least be able to use cashless payment methods than those in 
the highest age group who will vary between cash and cashless use. 
 

28. Where motorists have disabilities, the council provides a disabled blue 
badge parking scheme. In the UK there are 2.44m blue badges issued to 
motorists in the UK that enables the holder to park for free at all pay and 
display locations in York, as well as other restrictions such as marked 
disabled bays, resident parking zones and up to 3 hours on double 
yellow lines. This negates the need for those with a blue badge having to 
pay for their parking, so going cashless would not be an issue for blue 
badge holders. 
 

29. The website Statista states that in 2018 95% of UK adults own a mobile 
phone. It is likely that this number has increased in the last three years. 
Many of the 5% who do not own a phone have disabilities that would 
entitle them to a disabled blue badge or concessionary bus pass.  
 

30. 98% of the population own a bank debit or credit card (a link to this 
information can be found here: SUMMARY-UK-Payment-Markets-2021-
FINAL.pdf (ukfinance.org.uk)). Also, according to Statista, as of October 
2019, 83% of credit and debit cards in the UK had contactless payment 
function. It is understood that this increased to approx. 88% as of June 
2021, according to www.ukfinance.org.uk.  

 
31. In view of the high percentages of mobile phone users and bank 

debit/credit card holders it does not seem unreasonable to expect 
customers to pay using this method in view of the theft risk keeping high 
volumes of cash on street creates. 

 
Council Plan 

 
32. This section should explain how the proposals relate to the Council’s 3 

key priorities, as set out in the Council’s Plan 2019-23 (Making History, 
Building Communities) and any other key change programmes. 

 

Page 40

https://www.ukfinance.org.uk/sites/default/files/uploads/SUMMARY-UK-Payment-Markets-2021-FINAL.pdf
https://www.ukfinance.org.uk/sites/default/files/uploads/SUMMARY-UK-Payment-Markets-2021-FINAL.pdf
http://www.ukfinance.org.uk/


 

Implications 
 
Financial 
 
33. If adopting a cashless policy across Parking is agreed then there will be 

significant cost savings resulting in the following: - 

 Removal of the cash collection service 

 Elimination of theft of cash from machines and damage to machines 

 Reduction in maintenance and coin jams in machines 

 Removal of circa 60% of ticket machines, resulting in further savings in 
maintenance and use of these machines 

 Reduction /elimination of costs to download and upload data from 
machines. 

 
34. If not agreed, the issue of the budget decision in 2021 will need to be 

picked up. The shortfall is currently being picked up by a surplus income 
above budgeted income projections in car parking income. 

 
Human Resources (HR) 
 
35. None  
 
One Planet Council / Equalities      
 
36. None in this report but if adopting a cashless policy across Parking is 

agreed then there will likely be impacts on those who use cash to pay for 
their parking.  While this will be picked up in the consultation and EIA it 
should be considered cash use has dropped significantly and other 
services linked to vehicle ownership, such as paying for your insurance 
and tax are online services that don’t accept cash. 

 
Legal 
 
37. None in this report but if adopting a cashless policy across Parking is 

agreed then there may be implications under the Equalities Act that need 
to be considered and informed by the consultation and EIA. 

 
Crime and Disorder         
 
38. None in this report but if adopting a cashless policy across Parking is 

agreed then this will eliminate any theft of cash or damage to machines. 
 
 

Page 41



 

Information Technology (IT) 
 
39. None in this report but if adopting a cashless policy across Parking is 

agreed then this will inform procurement of new machines that will not 
only bring cost savings but better able to capture data from the machines 
and more accessible to officers remotely. 

 
Property 
 
40. None in this report but if adopting a cashless policy across Parking is 

agreed then there will likely be a reduction in assets (machines) to 
maintain. 

 
Risk Management 

 
41. There are no risks with this report or its recommendations given this is 

asking to go to consultation. Note that a decision not to proceed with the 
consultation and not proceed with cashless parking in whole or in part 
will come with a budgetary risk.  

 
 
  

Page 42



 

Contact Details 
 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
 

Author’s name  
Graham Titchener 
Parking Services Manager 
Parking Services,  
Highways and Transport 
graham.titchener@york.gov.uk 
 

Chief Officer’s name  
James Gilchrist 
Director for Environment, Transport and 
Planning 
 

Report 
Approved 

 
Date 03/07/2023 

 
 

    
Specialist Implications Officer(s) List information for all 
 
Financial:                         Legal: 
Patrick looker     Cathryn Moore 
Finance Manager    Legal Business Partner (Corporate) 
01904 51633     01904 552487 
 

Wards Affected:  All  

 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 

 
Annexes 
 
Annex A Cashless parking project – EIA 
 
 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



EIA 02/2021 
 

Annex A 
 

City of York Council 

Equalities Impact Assessment 
 
 

 

Who is submitting the proposal?  
 

 

Directorate: 
 

Place 

Service Area: 
 

Parking Services 

Name of the proposal: 
 

Cashless consultation, parking ticket machine review and 
development of procurement specification for parking pay and 
display machines and pay on exit systems 

Lead officer: 
 

Graham Titchener 

Date assessment completed: 
 

1-9-2022 

Names of those who contributed to the assessment: 

Name                                             Job title Organisation  Area of expertise 

Jav Safder Parking Patrol Manager CYC Parking and areas covering 
this proposal 

Graham Titchener Parking Services CYC Parking and areas covering 
this proposal including 
economic development 

P
age 45



EIA 02/2021 
 

Step 1 – Aims and intended outcomes   
 

 

 
 

1.1 What is the purpose of the proposal? 
Please explain your proposal in Plain English avoiding acronyms and jargon.  

 To take forward Members request to consult on the parking estate moving to cashless. 
Review of existing pay and display machines with a view to rationalising these and remove older machines 
that only work on the 3G network. As the 3G network is due to be turned within a period of the end of 2023 
through to 2030, which is wholly dependent on each network supplier. After which these machines will 
become redundant and not worth the cost to try and upgrade these, especially those well over 20 years old. 
In addition the council is keen to take forward pay on exit systems in most of its car parks.  This work will also 
see the consultants brought in to do this work to develop a specification that can be used for procurement of 
pay and display machines and pay on exit systems. 
Due to lack of staff capacity this proposal will be outsourced to a consultancy to take this proposal forward. 

1.2 Are there any external considerations? (Legislation/government directive/codes of practice etc.) 

 Yes, the turning off of the 3G network. 

1.3 What results/outcomes do we want to achieve and for whom?   
 

This section should explain what outcomes you want to achieve for service users, staff and/or the wider 
community. Demonstrate how the proposal links to the Council Plan (2019- 2023) and other corporate 
strategies and plans. 

P
age 46



EIA 02/2021 
 

 
 

  

 Cashless – it is hoped we will be able to go cashless in order to say on cash collection fees and 
maintenance of machines due to the working parts that are required to take, sort, and give change. This 
is a council benefit but will impact on those who currently use and want to continue to use cash. 
Pay and display machines – many of these are about 20 years old that only run on the 3G network. As 
this is due to be turned off January next year, we need to consider that these cannot be upgraded but 
due to the age of the machines this would not be seen as good value for money. In addition, as some of 
these machines take low amounts of cash we need to consider if it is cost effect to have machines in low 
use areas both in terms of initial cost and maintenance. These are instead would be covered by the pay 
by phone service instead. 
Given the above we may well be in a position of having to buy new pay and display machines. Given the 
cashless decision will impact on this (as to whether we procure cash and cashless machines or just 
cashless) there is the drive my officers, Members, and businesses to increase the pay on exit systems.  
As a result this opportunity will be used to get the consultant to develop a procurement specification to 
procure new machines and systems as and when funding becomes available. 
 
This goes towards helping to improve the local economy and desires from businesses as well as better 
systems to enable people to park and find their parking spaces more quickly and easier and more 
convenient to pay for their parking. 

  

1.4 Who are the stakeholders and what are their interests? 
 

 CYC Executive – those requesting this work regarding cashless consultation 
Car park users – going cashless will impact on those who currently use cash to pay for their parking. 
 

P
age 47



EIA 02/2021 
 

Step 2 – Gathering the information and feedback   
 

2.1  What sources of data, evidence and consultation feedback do we have to help us understand the 
impact of the proposal on equality rights and human rights? Please consider a range of sources, 
including consultation exercises, surveys, feedback from staff, stakeholders, participants, research reports, 
the views of equality groups, as well your own experience of working in this area etc. 

 Source of data/supporting evidence Reason for using  

What other councils are doing 
 

To compare and demonstrate that York is not the only Local 
Authority considering or doing this.  Also to learn any lessons 
regarding their work and findings. 

Use of parking payment providers 
intelligence 

 

As above 

Public consultation and direct 
consultation with older people’s groups 

and associations 
 

It is more likely that older people are used to using cash and less 
inclined to use cashless payment methods, therefore, to better get 
their views going to these specific bodies will help to better 
understand and persuade this group of people but also 
demonstrate the robustness of this public consultation on going 
cashless. 

Business representative groups  Using their knowledge of how the public is shifting towards more 
cashless payment measures and their views and steer on the pay 
on exit systems. 

Government statistics to inform and 
support this approach 

To provide a context to the changing environment we are in to 
support this initiative to move to a cashless service 

 

  

P
age 48



EIA 02/2021 
 

Step 3 – Gaps in data and knowledge  
  

 
 
 

Step 4 – Analysing the impacts or effects. 
 

4.1  Please consider what the evidence tells you about the likely impact (positive or negative) on people 
sharing a protected characteristic, i.e. how significant could the impacts be if we did not make any 
adjustments? Remember the duty is also positive – so please identify where the proposal offers 
opportunities to promote equality and/or foster good relations. 

Equality Groups  
and  
Human Rights.  

Key Findings/Impacts  Positive (+) 
Negative (-)  
Neutral (0)   

High (H) 
Medium (M) 
Low (L) 

Age This proposal needs to be taken forward to identify this, 
but it is taken that rolling out a cashless payment only 
system will have negative impacts on this group who 
want and may be can only use cash. Therefore, taking 
this work forward would likely have a negative impact on 
this group. 

+ M 

Disability  0 and - M 

3.1 What are the main gaps in information and understanding of the impact of your proposal?  Please 
indicate how any gaps will be dealt with. 

Gaps in data or knowledge  Action to deal with this  

Older peoples view on cashless payment methods 
 

Consult with specific aged representative bodies and 
commence a public consultation 

Other local authorities’ views and work on going cashless 
 

Liaise with LA groups and pay providers 

P
age 49



EIA 02/2021 
 

  This proposal needs to be taken forward to identify this, 
but it is taken that rolling out a cashless payment only 
system will have neutral impacts on this group who want 
and may be can only use cash. Therefore, taking this 
work forward would likely have a neutral or negative 
impact on this group. 

Gender 
 

Some impact on this groups and some may want or can only 
pay for goods and their parking by cash or use of mobile 
phone payments to pay for parking by the pay by phone 
service only where pay and display machines may be 
removed.  The implementation of pay on exit systems, 
subject to any faults they may have, should be a positive that 
allows them to pay for the amount of parking they use rather 
than estimating then having to either run back to fill the 
meter up or curtailing their visit. 

0, -, + M 

Gender 
Reassignment 

Some impact on this groups and some may want or can only 
pay for goods and their parking by cash or use of mobile 
phone payments to pay for parking by the pay by phone 
service only where pay and display machines may be 
removed.  The implementation of pay on exit systems, 
subject to any faults they may have, should be a positive that 
allows them to pay for the amount of parking they use rather 
than estimating then having to either run back to fill the 
meter up or curtailing their visit. 

0, -, + M 

Marriage and civil 
partnership 

Some impact on this groups and some may want or can only 
pay for goods and their parking by cash or use of mobile 
phone payments to pay for parking by the pay by phone 
service only where pay and display machines may be 
removed.  The implementation of pay on exit systems, 
subject to any faults they may have, should be a positive that 
allows them to pay for the amount of parking they use rather 

0, -, + M 

P
age 50



EIA 02/2021 
 

than estimating then having to either run back to fill the 
meter up or curtailing their visit. 

Pregnancy  
and maternity  

Some impact on this groups and some may want or can only 
pay for goods and their parking by cash or use of mobile 
phone payments to pay for parking by the pay by phone 
service only where pay and display machines may be 
removed.  The implementation of pay on exit systems, 
subject to any faults they may have, should be a positive that 
allows them to pay for the amount of parking they use rather 
than estimating then having to either run back to fill the 
meter up or curtailing their visit. 

0, -, + M 

Race Some impact on this groups and some may want or can only 
pay for goods and their parking by cash or use of mobile 
phone payments to pay for parking by the pay by phone 
service only where pay and display machines may be 
removed.  The implementation of pay on exit systems, 
subject to any faults they may have, should be a positive that 
allows them to pay for the amount of parking they use rather 
than estimating then having to either run back to fill the 
meter up or curtailing their visit. 

0, -, + M 

Religion  
and belief 

Some impact on this groups and some may want or can only 
pay for goods and their parking by cash or use of mobile 
phone payments to pay for parking by the pay by phone 
service only where pay and display machines may be 
removed.  The implementation of pay on exit systems, 
subject to any faults they may have, should be a positive that 
allows them to pay for the amount of parking they use rather 
than estimating then having to either run back to fill the 
meter up or curtailing their visit. 

0, -, + M 

Sexual  
orientation  

Some impact on this groups and some may want or can only 
pay for goods and their parking by cash or use of mobile 

0, -, + M 

P
age 51



EIA 02/2021 
 

phone payments to pay for parking by the pay by phone 
service only where pay and display machines may be 
removed.  The implementation of pay on exit systems, 
subject to any faults they may have, should be a positive that 
allows them to pay for the amount of parking they use rather 
than estimating then having to either run back to fill the 
meter up or curtailing their visit. 

Other Socio-
economic groups 
including :  

Could other socio-economic groups be affected e.g. 
carers, ex-offenders, low incomes? 

 

Carer Some impact on this groups and some may want or can only 
pay for goods and their parking by cash or use of mobile 
phone payments to pay for parking by the pay by phone 
service only where pay and display machines may be 
removed.  The implementation of pay on exit systems, 
subject to any faults they may have, should be a positive that 
allows them to pay for the amount of parking they use rather 
than estimating then having to either run back to fill the 
meter up or curtailing their visit. 

0, -, + M 

Low income  
groups  

This may have an impact on these groups who for budgetary 
or other reason may only be able to use cash.  The public 
consultation will try to capture views from these groups 

0 and - M 

Veterans, Armed 
Forces 
Community  

Some impact on this groups and some may want or can only 
pay for goods and their parking by cash or use of mobile 
phone payments to pay for parking by the pay by phone 
service only where pay and display machines may be 
removed.  The implementation of pay on exit systems, 
subject to any faults they may have, should be a positive that 
allows them to pay for the amount of parking they use rather 
than estimating then having to either run back to fill the 
meter up or curtailing their visit. 

0, -, + M 

P
age 52



EIA 02/2021 
 

Other  
 

   

Impact on human 
rights: 

  

List any human 
rights impacted. 

None   

 
 

Use the following guidance to inform your responses: 
 
Indicate: 

- Where you think that the proposal could have a POSITIVE impact on any of the equality groups like 

promoting equality and equal opportunities or improving relations within equality groups  

- Where you think that the proposal could have a NEGATIVE impact on any of the equality groups, i.e. it 

could disadvantage them 

- Where you think that this proposal has a NEUTRAL effect on any of the equality groups listed below i.e. it 

has no effect currently on equality groups. 

 

It is important to remember that a proposal may be highly relevant to one aspect of equality and not relevant to 
another. 
 
 

P
age 53



EIA 02/2021 
 

 

 
 
  

High impact 
(The proposal or process is very equality 
relevant) 

There is significant potential for or evidence of adverse impact 
The proposal is institution wide or public facing 
The proposal has consequences for or affects significant 
numbers of people  
The proposal has the potential to make a significant contribution 
to promoting equality and the exercise of human rights. 
 

Medium impact 
(The proposal or process is somewhat 
equality relevant) 

There is some evidence to suggest potential for or evidence of 
adverse impact  
The proposal is institution wide or across services, but mainly 
internal 
The proposal has consequences for or affects some people 
The proposal has the potential to make a contribution to 
promoting equality and the exercise of human rights 
 

Low impact 
(The proposal or process might be equality 
relevant) 

There is little evidence to suggest that the proposal could result in 
adverse impact  
The proposal operates in a limited way  
The proposal has consequences for or affects few people 
The proposal may have the potential to contribute to promoting 
equality and the exercise of human rights 
 

P
age 54



EIA 02/2021 
 

Step 5 - Mitigating adverse impacts and maximising positive impacts 
 
5.1 Based on your findings, explain ways you plan to mitigate any unlawful prohibited conduct or 

unwanted adverse impact. Where positive impacts have been identified, what is been done to 
optimise opportunities to advance equality or foster good relations? 

Subject to the consultation this is likely to have a medium impact on some groups of the public who want or can 
only use cash. Removing, albeit not as well used, pay and display machines for pay by phone only may have 
impacts on those who don’t have access to a mobile phone of cashless payment however there is a pay point 
option associated with pay by phone methods that do accept cash. 
 
When they work, pay on exit systems do allow for a less stressful parking experience that allows customers to go 
off and stay for their visit without the fear of receiving a fine for staying longer than the pay for at pay and display 
car parks that by their nature means the customer has to plan how long they will stay. 
 
 

Step 6 – Recommendations and conclusions of the assessment 
 

 

6.1    Having considered the potential or actual impacts you should be in a position to make an 
informed judgement on what should be done. In all cases, document your reasoning that 
justifies your decision. There are four main options you can take: 

- No major change to the proposal – the EIA demonstrates the proposal is robust.  There is no                       
   potential for unlawful discrimination or adverse impact and you have taken all opportunities to  
   advance equality and foster good relations, subject to continuing monitor and review. 

P
age 55



EIA 02/2021 
 

- Adjust the proposal – the EIA identifies potential problems or missed opportunities. This involves taking 
steps to remove any barriers, to better advance quality or to foster good relations.  

 
- Continue with the proposal (despite the potential for adverse impact) – you should clearly set out the 

justifications for doing this and how you believe the decision is compatible with our obligations under the 
duty 

 
- Stop and remove the proposal – if there are adverse effects that are not justified and cannot be 

mitigated, you should consider stopping the proposal altogether. If a proposal leads to unlawful 
discrimination, it should be removed or changed.  
 

Important: If there are any adverse impacts you cannot mitigate, please provide a compelling reason in the 
justification column. 

Option selected  Conclusions/justification  

At this starting point this 
selected option is to Continue 
with the proposal.  Following 
the consultation, it is likely this 
option will move to Adjust the 
proposal 
 
 
 
 

As well as the previous Administration’s request to explore cashless, 
progression and cost savings measures dictates this should start and continue 
to public consultation and Executive Member decision stages.  Following the 
findings of this consultation it is likely the proposal will be adjusted but not 
expected by much. 

 
 
 
 

P
age 56



EIA 02/2021 
 

Step 7 – Summary of agreed actions resulting from the assessment 
 
 

7.1  What action, by whom, will be undertaken as a result of the impact assessment. 
Impact/issue   Action to be taken  Person responsible  Timescale 

Public Consultation Consultant to report back to 
lead officers with findings and 
recommendations for a 
decision on how this can be 
taken forward 

Graham Titchener During of the consultation 
and Exec Member 
decision stages. 

Revenue to pay for new 
machines 

Work with Finance on what is 
possible and using any cost 
savings associated with this 
including machine removal 
and reduction or elimination of 
cash collection services to 
help fund. 

Graham 
Titchener/CYC 
Finance 

During of the consultation 
and Exec Member 
decision and procurement 
development stages. 

 
 

 
 

P
age 57



EIA 02/2021 
 

Step 8 - Monitor, review and improve 
 

8. 1 How will the impact of your proposal be monitored and improved upon going forward?   Consider 
how will you identify the impact of activities on protected characteristics and other marginalised groups 
going forward? How will any learning and enhancements be capitalised on and embedded? 

 Analysis of the public consultation and consulting with the councils Access Officer and disability groups to 
inform the consultation and this EIA. 

P
age 58



 

 

  
 

   

 
Decision Session – Executive Member for 
Economy & Transport 
 

11 July 2023 

Report of the Director of Environment, Transport and Planning  
 
New Lane, Acomb - Review of existing 20mph limit 
 
Summary 

 
1. The report details the results of a consultation exercise with regard 

speed management proposals for New Lane, Acomb following on from 
the completion of a feasibility study and the receipt of a 124-signature 
petition. 
 

2. The Executive Member is asked to decide how to proceed with speed 
management features on New Lane, Acomb.  
 

Recommendations 
 

3. The Executive Member is asked to:  

i. Approve Option 3: Improved Signage Only. Eight additional 

repeater signs to be provided along the full length of New Lane to 

support the existing signage.  

Reason: Following consultation with residents of the street there is no 

clear desire for the introduction of vertical traffic calming, despite the 

previous petition request. The measures do not offer value for money 

and when considered alongside the potential detrimental effects of such 

features on residents’ quality of life the negative effects are considered to 

outweigh the positive impact in this case. 

 
Background 
 
4. A speeding complaint made by a local resident in 2019 led to New Lane 

being fed into the 95 Alive Speed Management process for investigation. 
The initial 95 Alive review highlighted that speeds in New Lane were 
higher for southbound traffic, particularly the 85th percentile figure, and as 

Page 59 Agenda Item 6



 

such the recommended action was to consider an engineering solution to 
reduce traffic speeds.  

 
5. The 2020/21 Speed Management Scheme programme identified New 

Lane, Acomb for a feasibility study.  
 

6. The report looked at existing traffic speeds on New Lane, and proposed 
measures to improve compliance with the signed 20mph speed limit. 

 
7. The report also considered opportunities a speed management scheme 

might present for improving facilities for pedestrians wanting to cross New 
Lane near the entrance to West Bank Park. 
 

8. The feasibility report is attached as Annex 1. The report recommended 
that additional speed limit repeater signs were installed. The report was 
considered at Transport Board in July 2022 and approval was given to 
progress to design stage for the recommended option.  

 
9. However, a petition requesting “speed calming measures” on New Lane 

had been submitted at the full council meeting in April 2022. As this was 
within the scope of the portfolio of the Executive Member of Transport it 
was formally acknowledged in a report to an Executive Member decision 
session meeting on 28 September 2022. Given the strength of feeling 
expressed in the petition, it was agreed that, as the work progresses 
through design (including consultation), a number of options would be 
presented to residents for comment. The results of the consultation would 
then be brought back to Executive Member Decision Session for 
decision.  

 
Associated projects 
 
10.  Work is ongoing for the following associated projects in the area: 

 

 A full review of the Our Lady Queen of Martyrs school safety zone 
including consideration of a request to join the two 20mph Zones which 
are currently in place on Hamilton Drive.  

 A speed limit review of Acomb Road in the vicinity of crossing points 
used to access Acomb Primary School and West Bank Park. 

 A feasibility study of crossing improvements on Acomb Road.  

 A review of road markings on West Bank as part of the 23/24 annual 
review of parking restrictions. 

  
 

Page 60



 

Options 
 

11. Three options were presented for consideration at consultation stage: 
 

12. Option 1: Traffic Calming. Estimated cost £32,000 
A series of three speed humps on the southern half of the street along 

with the relevant signing. Plan provided as Annex 2. 

13. Option 2: Traffic Calming and crossing point improvement. 
Estimated cost £46,000 
A series of three speed humps on the southern half of the street along 

with the relevant signing. In addition, a localised narrowing of the 

carriageway to a single lane, this creates an opportunity to provide a 

better crossing point in the vicinity of the access to West Bank Park. A 

section of guardrail to slow pedestrians as they approach the 

carriageway is also proposed. Plan provided as Annex 3. 

14. Option 3: Signs only. Estimated cost £2,000 
Eight additional repeater signs to be provided the full length of New Lane 

to support the existing signage. Plan provided as Annex 4. 

 

Consultation  
 

15. A Consultation exercise was carried out via email with relevant officers 
within CYC. This was followed by emails to external statutory consultees 
and a letter drop to 63 properties which front onto New Lane or have 
direct vehicular access to the street. 
 

16. A copy of the consultation documents issued to residents is provided as 
Annex 5.  

17. A plan showing the consultation area is shown on Annex 6.  
 
Internal consultation feedback 
 
18.  Four responses were received from internal officers and are outlined 

below: 

Page 61



 

 

Comment Response 

 Not sure additional signs alone will 
work.  

 Asked if consideration had been 
given to using planters as a traffic 
calming method.  

 Agreed that a crossing point near 
the park access would be useful.  

Planters had not been considered for 
three reasons.  
1. Visibility from driveways must be 
maintained so all planters would be on 
the park side, creating a straight run for 
southbound traffic potentially increasing 
speeds at quiet times.    
2. Creating several chicanes requires 
more signage and could lead to vehicles 
accelerating to get past features.      
3. Maintenance of planters needs to be 
taken on by residents or they become 
unsightly. Width of road may make 
maintenance of planters by residents 
unworkable due to H&S concerns.   

Noted that a petition for a one-way on 
Lindley and Murray Street had been 
received and that the request didn’t 
specify a direction. 
 

The schemes are not interdependent. 
No intention to combine. 

1 - Are residents not concerned about 
northern section?                                                                                                               
2 - Give way markings too close to the 
proposed build-out. Could we have an 
additional option - build outs only no 
humps?                                                                                                                     
3 - If drivers are already ignoring the 
signs, I can’t see how installing even 
more will make any difference.                                                                                                                           
4- Disability issue on Hill Street just 
north of scheme proposals. Wheelchair 
users must cross New Lane twice to 
access.  

1. Speed data illustrates there is no 
issue with vehicle speeds over the 
northern section. 

2. Agreed. The give-way marking will 
be relocated before the options 
are presented to residents. The 
proposed build-out could be 
provided independently of the 
vertical measures.    

3. Due to the low level of speeding 
vehicles, it is likely that some 
drivers are just not aware of the 
posted speed limit, more frequent 
reminders could help reduce the 
average speeds. 

4. Changes to the Hill Street radii 
and footway are outside the scope 
of this scheme.  
 

Page 62



 

Can we tighten Hill Street with a proper 
buildout on both sides? 
Not keen on crossing as a narrowing - 
concerned cyclists will be put at risk. 
Suggested speed table as an 
alternative. 
Can we move guardrail back to park 
access? 

Changes to the Hill Street radii and 
footway are outside the scope of this 
scheme.  
 
All other feedback will be considered if 
the scheme moves to detailed design. 

 
External Consultation 
 

19. In total, 7 households responded. Of these, 4 expressed a clear 
preference for signing improvements only, whilst 1 favoured traffic 
calming only. Two respondents were less clear with their preference with 
one happy with Option 1 or 2 and the final respondent was happy with 
Option 1 or Option 3. The comments are outlined below. 

Page 63



 

 

Comment Officer Response 

I have received your letter in relation to the proposed speed 
management on New Lane. 
 
I understand people’s concerns regarding speeding on the 
road as we do hear people going by on a night-time, 
however I don’t think speed bumps, or a carriageway 
narrowing are the answer. 
 
Hamilton drive has speed bumps and that does not stop 
people speeding on that road, my partner was even 
overtaken whilst doing the speed limit on the road. Also, the 
current surface of the road is concrete and already a bumpy 
surface that discourages speeding. 
 
The narrowing of the road would also not work for me as 
there are already a lot of cars that park on both sides of the 
road, so it is relatively impossible to speed during busy 
times at the park. However, at a night-time when it is less 
busy, I doubt the narrowing of the road would make any 
difference as the driver can see no oncoming traffic. 
 
As New Lane is a through road, I think the narrowing of the 
road will increase the traffic waiting on the road and make it 
more difficult for residents to get out of their driveways. 
 
Finally, regarding the addition of signage, this would make 
sense as I am aware that visitors to our house are 
sometimes unsure of the speed limit and therefore 
additional signage would benefit those who do not intend to 
speed. 
 

Thanked resident 
for feedback. No 
further comments. 

I’m emailing regarding the consultation regarding speed 
management on New Lane. I am a current resident on the 
road.  
 
I strongly oppose option 1 of traffic calming by using speed 
humps. I believe speed humps are ineffective, around the 
corner on Hamilton drive are speed bumps outside the 
primary school and they appear to make no difference to 
prevent speeding. I also find them visually unappealing.  

Thanked resident 
for feedback. No 
further comments. 

Page 64



 

 
Option 2 of traffic calming and crossing points. Again, I feel 
speed bumps are ineffective. The suggestion of narrowing 
the carriageway along the road would be a waste of public 
funds. Cars are consistently parked on the road already 
creating several single lanes along the road.  
Option 3 of signs only would be my preference. I do not feel 
it is clear that the street is 20mph so additional signage 
could be beneficial. This also seems to be a more 
appropriate use of public funds.  
 

My husband and I think option 1 and 2 are the better 
options. 
 
 

Thanked resident 
for feedback. No 
further comments. 

  

I vote for Option 1. Option 2 isn't really viable as narrowing 
of the street will cause more problems than it’s worth, many 
parents use this street to park in when dropping their 
children off and picking them up from the school in Hamilton 
Drive plus the Methodist chapel goers also use it as a 
means of parking!! There's hardly any room left for 
residents!!! 
Option 3 would be a total waste of taxpayers money as 
people don't adhere to the existing signage, I really don't 
think they would take notice of anymore! 
 

Thanked resident 
for feedback. No 
further comments. 

We have lived on New Lane for 49 years, since 1974, and 
as far as we are concerned there isn’t an issue with 
excessive speed in New Lane that would warrant the 
installation of physical traffic calming measures. The vast 
majority of the traffic travels at a sensible speed and there is 
no guarantee that the occasional idiot that doesn’t, would be 
deterred by speed humps etc. In the 49 years that we’ve 
lived here we can’t recall any traffic accidents at all and 
certainly none that have been caused by excessive speed.   
 
Traffic humps cause vibrations to nearby properties and 
increased pollution because of vehicles slowing down and 
speeding up again. Large vehicles come along New Lane 
and sometimes have difficulty getting past parked cars. To 
reduce the width of the road near the Hill Street junction 
would only make the situation worse.  

Thanked resident 
for feedback. No 
further comments. 

Page 65



 

 
We are agreeable to Option 3, signs only, but are strongly 
opposed to Options 1 & 2 which in our opinion are totally 
unnecessary. 

 

My concerns focus on my house being at a pinch point in 
the road where cars parked on the carriageway switch 
sides. South of my house cars park on the east side of the 
road, north of my house there is 100m of parking on west 
before reverting to east.  There are visibility issues.  It may 
help with speed, though. 
 
With the speed recommendations 
1.  Option 3 more signs 
2.  Do nothing 
3.  Option 1 traffic calming.   There is effectively one lane 
and consequently you drive to manage the likelihood of 
oncoming traffic, with due consideration. 
4. Option 2 not convinced a good use of funding; parked 
cars achieve this already.  You give way to cars coming 
from the south already. 
 
Slowing traffic down is good, but road doesn’t need any 
more weaving and darting for gaps. 
 
Thank-you for the opportunity to comment 
 

Thanked resident 
for feedback. No 
further comments. 

OPTION 1. Cheapest option – OK! 
OPTION 2. OK Three speed bumps! + signs. 
OPTION 3. Single Lane – NEVER! The lane plus Hamilton 
drive is already “crammed” at ‘drop off’ and ‘collect’ times 
i.e. school times. The drivers of cars and vans already take 
chances so a serious accident is only a matter of time.  
A section of guardrail – agreed but where would these be 
located. 
May I suggest that the “Council decision makers” plus the 
engineers visit the school “drop off & collect times” if they 
haven’t already done so!   

A CYC engineer 
has visited the site 
at school pick- up / 
drop off.  

 
20. Ward Councillors - No responses were received. 

 

Page 66



 

21. North Yorkshire Police – Raised concerns with regard the potential for 

noise generation by vertical traffic calming measures and loss of on street 

parking with the proposed buildout. Supported the introduction of 

additional signage to reduce speeds on the southern section of the street.  

 

22. North Yorkshire Fire Service - No response 

 

23. Ambulance Service – No response 

Analysis 
 
Option 1 – Traffic Calming. 
 
24. Vertical traffic calming measures would help to enforce the 20mph 

speed limit, however the mean speeds through the southern section of 
New Lane are only 2 to 3mph higher than the signed speed limit. 
Vertical measures are expensive and do not offer value for money when 
the required speed reduction is so low.  
 

25. Full width vertical measures can also create vibration and noise issues, 
negatively impact air quality in the local area, and most importantly as 
illustrated by the consultation responses are not supported by the 
residents of the street despite the views from the petition. For these 
reasons this option is not recommended. 

 
Option 2 – Traffic Calming plus road narrowing for crossing point. 

 
26. All the comments raised in relation to Option 1 apply to Option 2. The 

addition of the proposed localised narrowing to improve the crossing 
point to the park does offer an additional improvement over Option 1.  
 

27. The use of a buildout to create a priority give way arrangement requires 
a steady flow of traffic in both directions or vehicles are not slowed 
sufficiently and could race to beat an opposing vehicle. The traffic flows 
reported in the Feasibility Report (Annex 1) are higher northbound and 
are so infrequent (averaging one vehicle every 30 seconds) that the 
priority working is likely to be ineffective. So, whilst this option provides 
an improvement to crossing facilities, it may not provide worthwhile 
benefits for the significantly increased cost.  

 
28. Both CYC officers and residents raised safety concerns in relation to 

the buildout’s location, close to Hill Street, and the possible risks for 
cyclists at carriageway narrowings. These issues have been considered 

Page 67



 

and whilst the scheme is not the recommended option it is considered 
suitable for implementation. 

  
Option 3 – Additional signing. 
 
29. The signing-only option offers an inexpensive and less intrusive scheme 

that can be achieved quickly and based on the result of the consultation 
exercise is supported by the local residents. 

   
30. Whilst it may not provide the traffic calming intervention that the petition 

requested, it is considered adequate to make drivers more aware of the 
speed limit, something which was noted in the resident responses. 
Officers are aware that this may not provide the same reduction in 
traffic speeds as vertical measures but based on the original speed 
surveys it should help bring speeds down by 1-2 mph making them 
much more in line with the posted 20mph limit.  

 

31. It should be noted that any option taken forward would be subject to the 
road safety audit process before the scheme progresses to 
construction. This is in line with City of York Council Policy for any 
scheme which changes the use of the highway.   

 
Council Plan 

 
32. The three options provided for consideration to the residents of New Lane 

all meet the following priorities from the Council plan. 
 

33. Getting around sustainably: By reducing vehicle speeds on local roads 
the community can feel safer using sustainable transport methods 
including cycling and walking. 

 
34. Safe communities and culture for all: Lower vehicles speeds can assist in 

vulnerable road users feeling safer when travelling. 
 

35. An open and effective council: The original feasibility study was 
undertaken in response to concerns being raised by residents and 
following a subsequent recommendation from North Yorkshire Police. 
This report has been developed and progressed as a direct result of a 
petition. Both activities demonstrate that the council considers community 
requests in an open and effective manner. 
 

Page 68



 

Implications 
 

36. Financial –  
The cost of the proposed option can be met within existing budgets.  

 
37. Human Resources (HR) –  

There are no Human Resources implications around the decisions in 
this report.  
 

38. Equalities –  
The Council recognises its Public Sector Equality Duty under Section 
149 of the Equality Act 2010 (to have due regard to the need to 
eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
prohibited conduct; advance equality of opportunity between persons 
who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not 
share it and foster good relations between persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it in the 
exercise of a public authority’s functions.  
 
An Equalities Impact Assessment has been carried out. There are no 
equality implications as a result of the proposal. The assessment is 
attached as Annex 7. 
 

39. Legal – All speed limits, other than those on restricted roads, should be 
made by order under Section 84 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 
1984.  Any speed limits below 30 mph, other than 20 mph limits or 20 
mph zones, require individual consent from the Secretary of State.  
Traffic authorities have a duty to erect and maintain prescribed speed 
limit signs on their roads in accordance with the Traffic Signs 
Regulations and General Directions 2002 (TSRGD 2002). 
 

40. Crime and Disorder –  
There are no crime and disorder implications around the decisions in 

this report. 

41. Information Technology (IT) –  
There are no Information Technology implications around the decisions 
in this report. 
 

42. Property –  
There are no Property implications around the decisions in this report. 
 

Page 69



 

43. Highways –  
The installation of any of the options may have an impact on the use of 
the highway in the short term during the construction period. Providing 
traffic calming on the street could relocate some of the existing traffic to 
other streets if they choose to avoid the measures. This may have 
implications for the wider highway network.  

 
Risk Management 

 
44. The following risks are associated with the recommendation of the 

report:  
 

The wider community may be disappointed with the recommended 
option which could affect the authority’s reputation. Using the CYC risk 
scoring matrix this risk is rated as 9. No further action is considered 
necessary because of this risk being identified. 
 

Contact Details 
 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
 

Ben Potter, 
Engineer 
Highways Engineering Design 
Tel No. 01904 553496 
 
 

James Gilchrist 
Director of Environment, Transport and 
Planning 
 

Report 
Approved 

 
Date 03/07/2023 

 
 

    
Specialist Implications Officer(s) List information for all 
 
Financial:                         Legal: 
Patrick looker     Cathryn Moore 
Finance Manager    Legal Business Partner (Corporate) 
01904 51633     01904 552487 
 

Wards Affected:  Holgate  All  

 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 

Page 70



 

Background Papers: 
 
Decision Session – Executive Member for Transport – Wednesday, 28 

September 2022. Agenda Item 5 – Acknowledgement of Petitions.  
 
Annexes 
 
Annex 1 –  Feasibility Report – Speed Management Programme 2020/21 

New Lane (Acomb) Review of existing 20mph limit  
 
Annex 2 – Option 1 Outline Scheme Drawing 
 
Annex 3 – Option 2 Outline Scheme Drawing 
 
Annex 4 – Option 3 Outline Scheme Drawing 
 
Annex 5 – Consultation Documentation Pack 
 
Annex 6 – Consultation Area Plan 
 
Annex 7 – Equalities Impact Assessment 
 
 
List of Abbreviations Used in this Report 
 
CYC – City of York Council  

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



Speed Management Programme 2020/21 

New Lane (Acomb) 

Review of existing 20mph limit 

Purpose 

The 2020/21 Speed Management Scheme programme identified a 

number of potential schemes to be considered at feasibility. One of these 

schemes is New Lane, Acomb.  

This report looks at existing traffic speeds on New Lane, and proposes 

measures to improve compliance with the signed 20mph speed limit. 

The report also looks at opportunities a speed management scheme  

might present for improving facilities for pedestrians wanting to cross New 

Lane near the entrance to West Bank Park. 

 

Background 

Existing Street Characteristics 

New Lane is approximately about 400m and links Hamilton Drive to 

Acomb Road (see location plan in Annex A). Along most of the east side 

of the road there is housing, mainly semi-detached. To the west lies West 

Bank Park over most of its length, with just some mixed housing over 

about 100m at the northern end of the street. 

The existing carriageway is 6.1m wide. It is a concrete road, with joints 

about every 5m, and it has side-entry gullies located at regular intervals 

within the kerb lines. 

There is a wide grass verge on the east side, and a large proportion of the 

semi-detached houses have vehicle crossovers and off-street parking 

available. Despite this, there is usually a good scattering of cars parked 

on-street on the east side of the road between Hill Street and Hamilton 

Drive.  In the northern part of the road, on-street parking occurs mainly 

near the housing, and takes place on both sides of the road (this 

alternates, because the road is not wide enough to have cars parked on 

both sides in any one location).  

There is only one road junction along its full length, located about midway. 

This is with Hill Street, which links New Lane with a large number of other 

Page 73

ddttsbp
Text Box
ANNEX 1



residential streets (these include Murray Street and Lindley Street which 

have terraced housing).  

Just south of the Hill Street junction (on the western side) is a pedestrian 

access gateway to West Bank Park. There is a defined pedestrian 

crossing location close-by, which is a simple pair of dropped-kerb crossing 

points with tactile paving.  

Speed Management History 

In the 1990s many streets in the Acomb area had traffic calming schemes 

introduced. However, New Lane was not considered a priority for action 

presumably because of its good accident record and low pedestrian 

activity. 

New Lane became a 20mph street in 2014 as part of the city-wide initiative 

of introducing lower speed limits, wherever feasible, by just signing rather 

than introducing traffic calming measures. The scheme simply comprises 

two pairs of “terminal” 20mph signs, one at each end of the street, plus 

two pairs of smaller “repeater” signs located along the street to remind 

drivers in each direction of travel of the speed limit. 

A speeding complaint made by a local resident in 2019 led to New Lane 

being fed into the 95 Alive Speed Management process for investigation. 

As part of this process, a speed survey was undertaken in late 2019, 

between 5th and 13th December. The speed recorder was positioned on a 

lamp column (LC8) on the west side of the street, opposite the junction 

with Hill Street, and measured speeds in both directions. 

The main survey results were:- 

• mean speeds of 21mph southbound / 16mph northbound, and  

• 85th percentile speeds of 28mph southbound / 24mph northbound.  

 

The target for a signed 20mph street is to have mean speeds of 20mph or 

less, and 85th percentile speeds of 24mph or lower (this is the ACPO 

enforcement figure). Since the measured speeds in New Lane were 

higher for southbound traffic, particularly the 85th percentile figure, the 

recommended action was to consider an engineering solution to slow 

traffic. 

In response to this recommendation, a feasibility study for New Lane 

was included in the Council’s Speed Management Programme. The brief 

asked for the study to consider both vertical and horizontal traffic 

Page 74



calming measures, along with possible improvements for pedestrians 

wishing to cross to / from the West Bank Park access close to the 

junction with Hill Street.  

 

New Lane looking southwards from Hill Street junction 

 

New Lane top section looking southwards 

 

Page 75



Petition 

The author has become aware of the fact that a petition has been 

submitted to Full Council in May 2022. The petition, signed by 124 

residents, asks for “speed calming measures on New Lane”. 

The petition was submitted at the same time as several others, and 

Highway Regulation are to acknowledge the petitions in a consolidated 

report to September’s Executive Member decision session meeting. 

The findings and recommendations of this feasibility study are to support 

the petition report. 

 

Speed Management Feasibility Study 

Traffic Speeds 

Although a speed survey had been carried out in December 2019 near 

the Hill Street junction (at lamp column 8), New Lane is long and has 

sections with different characteristics. It was therefore decided to carry out 

two further speed surveys to give a better understanding of traffic speeds 

along the whole of the street. The surveys were carried out in November 

2021 at lamp columns 4 and 11, as shown on the plan in Annex B. 

The key results from the three speed surveys are:-  

Lamp Column 4 (between Hill Street and Acomb Road - 2021 survey) 

• mean speeds - 20mph northward, 20mph southwards 

• 85th %ile speeds - 24mph northward, 25mph southwards 

Lamp Column 8 (at the Hill Street junction - 2019 survey) 

• mean speeds - 16mph northward, 21mph southwards  

• 85th %ile speeds - 24mph northward, 28mph southwards 

Lamp Column 11 (between Hill Street and Hamilton Drive - 2021 survey) 

• mean speeds - 23mph northward, 22mph southwards  

• 85th %ile speeds - 27mph northward, 27mph southwards 

Reviewing the 2021 surveys further (as this is more current), the 

percentages of vehicles exceeding the enforcement limit were 

considerably higher in the southern section (32.9% southbound, 37.5% 

northbound) than in the northern section (17.4% southbound, 12.9% 

northbound). 

Page 76



Similarly, the percentages of vehicles exceeding the signed speed limit 

were also considerably higher in the southern section (62% southbound, 

75.3% northbound) compared to 48.4% northbound and 47.1% 

southbound in the northern section. 

The data indicates that the majority of the higher speeding incidents 

occurred between the hours of 00:00 and 07:00 in both directions, 

although the numbers of vehicles at these times are low. Throughout the 

remainder of the day, mean speeds are generally more compliant with the 

limit or just over, although speeds in the southern section are slightly 

higher than in the northern section.  

The data also indicates the main problem area for traffic speed along New 

Lane to be the section between Hill Street and Hamilton Drive, where both 

the target levels for mean and 85th percentile speeds are exceeded.  

The survey figures for the section between Hill Street and Acomb Road 

are lower, and closer to the target values. Over this section, on-street 

parking occurs on both side of the road, and there is a significant bend 

that reduces forward visibility for drivers. These factors are thought to 

make drivers proceed with more caution and generally at a lower speed. 

The only figure of concern is the 85th percentile speed for southbound 

drivers approach the Hill Street junction.  

 

Traffic Flows 

The 2021 speed surveys also gave a measure of traffic flows along the 

street. The key results of the surveys are provided below. The main 

findings are: 

Northern Section (Hill Street – Acomb Road)  

• Average daily two-way flow - 1032 vehicle movements 

• Highest hourly two-way flow – 116 vehicle movements 

Southern Section (Hill Street – Hamilton Drive)  

• Average daily two-way flow - 868 vehicle movements 

• Highest hourly two-way flow – 97 vehicle movements. 

 

These are very low flows, equating to about one vehicle movement every 

30 seconds in the peak hour over the busiest section of the street (i.e. Hill 

Page 77



Street to Acomb Road). In the southern section, this falls to about one 

vehicle movement every 45 seconds. 

The daily AM and PM peak flows in either direction are also very low. 

 Northern section Southern section 

 Northbound Southbound Northbound Southbound 

Daily Average 616 416 507 361 

Weekday average 651 422 578 393 

Weekend average 506 394 384 305 

Daily Average AM peak 125 59 81 58 

Daily Average PM peak 103 79 96 68 

Monday average  625 416 561 372 

Tuesday average 631 403 582 397 

Wednesday average 663 417 581 395 

Thursday average 671 436 559 374 

Friday average 667 435 587 421 

Saturday average 566 384 444 349 

Sunday average 446 404 324 262 

 

These figures are significant, because horizontal traffic calming measures 

on two-way roads tend to rely on a high level of opposing traffic flow to be 

effective. This is discussed later in the report. 

On-site observations confirmed the low traffic flows along of the road. 

There was also little pedestrian activity observed, with the pedestrian 

access gate to West Bank Park being the only obvious focal point for 

crossing movements.  

 

Road Traffic Accidents 

One of the main aims of introducing a speed management scheme would 

be to make the road environment safer. Therefore, it was felt important for 

the study to investigate the history of road traffic accidents in the street. 

The police accident records were looked at going back to 2014, when the 

20mph limit was introduced.  

Only one injury accident has been recorded along New Lane since 2014, 

this occurring in 2021 close to the junction with Hill Street. This was a 

“rear-end shunt” by a car following another travelling northwards. The first 

car braked suddenly to let a vehicle travelling in the opposite direction 

pass a parked car, and the following driver did not react quickly enough 

Page 78



and a rear-end collision occurred. The driver of the front car suffered a 

sight injury. Excessive speed was not recorded as a contributory factor. 

This indicates that the street has an excellent road safety record. 

Damage-only accidents are usually not recorded, so there is no indication 

of how many of this type of accident may or may not have occurred.  

 

Speed Management Options 

In addition to the very low traffic flows it experiences, New Lane is not a 
bus route or considered a key strategic road for the emergency services. 
It is classified as a “residential” area in the Council’s Speed Management 
Plan, meaning it is considered a suitable location for the application of the 
full range of traffic calming measures to address speeding issues. These 
include:-  

• Road humps or speed tables (full-width vertical measures)  

• Bus-friendly vertical measures – such as speed cushions. 

• Horizontal features (e.g. chicanes and build-outs) and mini 

roundabouts. 

As mentioned earlier, the very low traffic flows mean that horizontal 

measures are not likely to be effective in New Lane. Vertical measures 

would be more effective, but can be unpopular with local residents due 

to potential noise and vibration issues. Road humps are the generally 

the most effective means of slowing all types of vehicle, with round-top 

humps being the most cost effective solution. However, at key 

pedestrian crossing locations more expensive flat-top speed tables can 

offer additional benefits, and on bus routes speed cushions are favoured 

because of improved passenger comfort. 

 
The design of a speed management scheme appropriate for New Lane, 
along with potential improvements to the pedestrian crossing point near 
the West Bank Park access, is discussed in more detail below: 
 
Key considerations:- 

• Analysis of the survey data indicates that the main area of concern 
for speeding along New Lane is the section between Hill Street and 
Hamilton Drive.  

• A road hump scheme would offer the most effective way of reducing 
speeds to the target levels for a 20mph street 

Page 79



• 75mm high round-top road humps are the standard used in York. 
They are usually “taper edged” so they do not affect road drainage  

• To be most effective, humps should be located at regular intervals 
along a street, ideally with a spacing of around 75m. 

• A road hump scheme should have an initial speed-reducing feature 
to ensure that approaching drivers are not travelling at excessive 
speed when encountering the first vertical measure. This might be 
turning at a road junction before entering the street in question, or 
passing through a horizontal feature such as a road narrowing. The 
entry signing for a 20mph limit is also deemed to be adequate 
warning. 

 
Option A 
 
A road hump scheme could cover the whole length of New Lane, as shown 
in Annex C. The scheme would comprise 6 road humps at regular 
spacing. Initial speed reduction would be achieved by having to turn into 
New Lane from the end junctions with Acomb Road or Hamilton Drive, or 
from Hill Street mid-way along it. 
    
The slowing effect of the humps should make it slightly easier and safer 
for pedestrians to cross the road anywhere, including near the West Bank 
Park entrance. However, the improvement will be small, and probably not 
recognised by local people. 
 
Option B  
 
This would be the road hump scheme in Option A enhanced with a specific 
measure to help pedestrian cross near the West Bank Park access. The 
level of pedestrian activity would not justify the introduction of a controlled 
crossing facility (i.e. Zebra or Puffin), and the road is not wide enough for 
the introduction of a central refuge. Therefore the most appropriate 
improvement for pedestrians would be the introduction of a road 
narrowing feature, as illustrated in Annex D.   
 
This would make the crossing point more visible, and reduce the width of 
carriageway to be crossed. Although the narrowing would have directional 
priority working signs added, the low probability of meeting an opposing 
vehicle means that traffic speeds would not be reduced by any significant 
amount. 
 
 
 

Page 80



Option C 
 
This would target the southern section of the street between Hill Street 
and Hamilton Drive, where the highest speeds are occurring. The scheme 
would comprises just three road humps. The need for an initial speed-
reducing feature in advance of the road humps would be addressed by 
including the road narrowing described above, just south of the Hill Street 
junction. The scheme is illustrated in Annex E. 
 
As mentioned earlier, because of the low traffic flows on New Lane, such 
a feature is unlikely to result in drivers having to slow down significantly to 
give-way to on-coming traffic. However, it would be sufficient to meet the 
requirements for having a speed reducing feature at the start of the road 
hump scheme, and would be viewed as an improvement for pedestrians.  
 
Option D  
 
This does not propose any road humps, and would just have additional 
20mph repeater signs along the street to remind drivers of the lower limit 
and encourage them to slow down, as shown in Annex F. The road 
narrowing near West Bank Park, illustrated in Annex D, could be provided 
to provide an enhanced crossing facility for pedestrians.  
 
Option E  
 
This “do minimum” option does not propose any road humps, or a road 
narrowing. The additional repeater 20mph signs shown in Annex F would 
be provided, to increase driver awareness and compliance with the 
existing 20mph limit.  At the crossing point near West Bank Park, some 
guard-railing would be installed to highlight the crossing point and direct 
people to the existing dropped kerb facility, as shown in Annex G. 
 
 
Analysis and Cost Estimates 

The study has confirmed that New Lane is a very lightly trafficked road, 

with a very good safety record. Speed surveys show that the existing 

20mph restriction is working adequately over much of the street, but 

there is an issue with higher speeds on the section between Hill Street 

and Hamilton Drive. This section also includes the entrance to West 

Bank Park, the only obvious attractor for pedestrian crossing movements 

in the area.   

Page 81



The petition submitted by residents has indicated a general concern 

about speeding on New Lane (124 signatures) and requests the 

installation of speed calming measures. The proposal for calming 

measures is supported by at least one of the ward members. 

Option A, a road hump scheme covering the full street, would certainly 

address the speed issue and generally improve safety for pedestrians 

seeking to cross road. However, it would be introducing traffic calming 

measures into the northern half of New Lane, where speeding has been 

proven not to be an issue, and would not provide obvious improvements 

to help pedestrians cross near the West Bank Park access. It would be an 

expensive option (estimated scheme cost £20K). 

Option B, would enhance the road hump scheme proposed in Option A by 

the addition of a road-narrowing just south of Hill Street. This would 

provide a more obvious improvement for pedestrians, but would add 

significantly to the scheme cost (estimated scheme cost £25K). 

Option C, a reduced road hump scheme within the southern section, with 

a road narrowing near Hill Street, would address the main speeding issue 

and introduce an obvious facility to help pedestrians crossing near the 

West Bank Park access. In cost terms, this would only be removing three 

road humps from Option B, so the scheme cost would still be high 

(estimated scheme cost £18K). 

Option D - just the road narrowing plus some extra 20mph signing - would 

be less effective on traffic speeds than road humps and the evidence 

suggests there is not a serious safety problem to address. Removal of the 

road humps would reduce the scheme cost by about £6K. The road 

narrowing would highlight and improve the pedestrian crossing point, but 

it remains an expensive feature (estimated scheme cost £12K). 

Option E - 20mph signing improvements - could bring about a small 
improvement in driver awareness and compliance with the speed limit. 
The introduction of guardrail near the West Bank Park access would help 
highlight the crossing point and direct people to the existing dropped kerb 
facility. It would be a low cost scheme (estimated scheme cost £5K).  
 
 
Conclusion 

Given the scale of problems to be addressed, it is considered that Option 

E represents the most appropriate way forward. Although improved 

Page 82



signing would be a very low level of intervention, the evidence gathered 

by the study shows that the street is a safe environment with low traffic 

levels and pedestrian activity. The surveys showed speeds are higher 

than desired for a 20mph restriction, but are not considered to be a serious 

safety concern. Similarly, the study has shown that pedestrians have little 

difficulty, or face serious safety issues, crossing the road near West Bank 

Park access. The small measures proposed as part of the Option E 

scheme should improve driver awareness of the crossing point, and 

encourage more use of the existing crossing facility. 

Whatever is introduced, it would be prudent to out further speed 

monitoring out a few months after implementation to assess the scheme’s 

success and whether further consideration needs to be given to further 

action. 

 

Recommendation 

Officers consider that the recommended action would be to progress the 

measures outlined in Option E. Transport Board had earlier approved this 

recommendation. 

However, given the concerns raised through the petition and subject to 

the decision of the Executive Member following September’s meeting, 

Officers consider that consultation could take place on a number of 

options and be reported back to Executive Member for a decision on 

which option to progress to delivery. 

 
 
 
Author: 
 

Page 83



Mike Durkin 
Engineer 
(Transport Projects)  
Tel No. 553459 
 
Manager responsible for report: 
 
David Mercer, 
Acting Transport Projects and Delivery Manager 
Tel No 553447 
 
 
Annexes: 
 
Annex A – Location plan 
 
Annex B – Speed survey locations 
 
Annex C – Road hump scheme (full street) 
 
Annex D – Road narrowing feature 
 
Annex E – Road hump scheme (part of street) 
 
Annex F – Additional 20mph repeater signs 
 
Annex G – Pedestrian guardrailing  
 
 

 

Page 84



A3

D
r
a
w

n

C
h
e
c
k
e
d

SCALE

BASED UPON THE ORDNANCE SURVEY MAPPING WITH THE 

PERMISSION OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY'S STATIONERY 

OFFICE  c  CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION 

INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION 

OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.

City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818

DATE

REV AMENDMENTS
DATE

Transport Projects

Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS

www.york.gov.uk

C:\Users\francda\Desktop\DAF Documents\Drawings\New Lane (Acomb)\ANNEX A-New Lane (Acomb) Speed Management Study - Location Plan.dwg

NEW LANE (ACOMB)

SPEED MANAGEMENT STUDY - LOCATION PLAN

DRAWING_No

DRAWN BY

DAF

1:1250

MAY 2022

ANNEX A

Page 85

AutoCAD SHX Text
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
Holgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
(Club)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
Holgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
Methodist

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
MURRAY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
LINDLEY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
13.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
ACOMB ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
15.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
Bowling Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
NURSERY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
JAMES BACKHOUSE PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
152

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
PCs

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
146

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
14.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
HAMILTON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
137

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
Holgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
Play

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
Sports

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
Memorial

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
18.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
ACOMB ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
of Latter-Day Saints

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
Day Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
HOLGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
148

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
17.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
West Bank Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
Church of Jesus Christ

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
Beech Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
BARRETT AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
HILL STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
NORTHCOTE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
HAMILTON WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
12.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
10.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
10.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
HAMILTON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
HAMILTON DRIVE



(2021 SURVEY)

L/C 4

(2019 SURVEY)

L/C 8

(2021 SURVEY)

L/C 11

A3

D
r
a
w

n

C
h
e
c
k
e
d

SCALE

BASED UPON THE ORDNANCE SURVEY MAPPING WITH THE 

PERMISSION OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY'S STATIONERY 

OFFICE  c  CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION 

INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION 

OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.

City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818

DATE

REV AMENDMENTS
DATE

Transport Projects

Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS

www.york.gov.uk

C:\Users\francda\Desktop\DAF Documents\Drawings\New Lane (Acomb)\ANNEX B-New Lane (Acomb) Speed Management Study - Speed Surveys.dwg

NEW LANE (ACOMB)

SPEED MANAGEMENT STUDY - SPEED SURVEYS

DRAWING_No

DRAWN BY

DAF

1:1250

MAY 2022

ANNEX B

Page 86

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
Holgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
(Club)

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
Holgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
Methodist

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
MURRAY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
LINDLEY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
13.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
ACOMB ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
15.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
Bowling Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
NURSERY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
JAMES BACKHOUSE PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
152

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
PCs

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
146

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
14.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
HAMILTON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
137

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
Holgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
Play

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
Sports

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
Memorial

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
18.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
ACOMB ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
of Latter-Day Saints

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
Day Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
HOLGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
148

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
17.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
West Bank Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
Church of Jesus Christ

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
Beech Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
BARRETT AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
HILL STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
NORTHCOTE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
HAMILTON WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
12.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
10.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
10.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
HAMILTON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
HAMILTON DRIVE



PS1 AND PS2

MOUNTED ABOVE

EXISTING 20mph SIGN ON

EXISTING POST

(EXISTING POST TO BE

EXTENDED)

PS1

PS2

EXISTING

PS3 AND PS4

MOUNTED ABOVE

EXISTING 20mph SIGN ON

EXISTING POST

(EXISTING POST TO BE

EXTENDED)

PS3

PS4

EXISTING

PS5

PS6

PS5 AND PS6

ON NEW POST

PS9 AND PS10

MOUNTED ABOVE

EXISTING 20mph SIGN ON

EXISTING LAMP COLUMN

PS7 AND PS8

MOUNTED ABOVE

EXISTING 20mph SIGN ON

EXISTING POST

(EXISTING POST TO BE

EXTENDED)

Transport Projects

Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS

www.york.gov.uk

c CROWN COPYRIGHT.City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818

CHECKED BY

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE

A2

REV
INITIAL

DATE

AMENDMENT

C:\Users\francda\Desktop\DAF Documents\Drawings\New Lane (Acomb)\ANNEX C-New Lane (Acomb) Speed Management Study - Full Road Hump Scheme.dwg

DAF

MD

1:1000, 1:500

DEC 2021

NEW LANE (ACOMB) - SPEED MANAGEMENT STUDY

FULL ROAD HUMP SCHEME

R00000 / 99999

ROAD HUMP

FOR DETAILS REFER

TO YCC STANDARD

DRAWING STD-07-05

ROAD HUMP

FOR DETAILS REFER

TO YCC STANDARD

DRAWING STD-07-05

ROAD HUMP

FOR DETAILS REFER

TO YCC STANDARD

DRAWING STD-07-05

ROAD HUMP

FOR DETAILS REFER

TO YCC STANDARD

DRAWING STD-07-05

ROAD HUMP

FOR DETAILS REFER

TO YCC STANDARD

DRAWING STD-07-05

ROAD HUMP

FOR DETAILS REFER

TO YCC STANDARD

DRAWING STD-07-05

INSET B

PLAN LAYOUT

INSET A INSET C INSET D INSET E INSET F

INSET A

INSET B

INSET C

INSET D

INSET E

INSET F

ANNEX C

P
age 87

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
Holgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
(Club)

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
Holgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
Methodist

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
MURRAY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
ACOMB ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
15.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
Bowling Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
HAMILTON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
Holgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
Play

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
Sports

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
Memorial

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
WINDMILL RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
HOLGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
17.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
West Bank Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
(disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
Windmill

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
Holgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
HILL STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
NORTHCOTE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
HAMILTON WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
12.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
CAMPBELL AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
HAMILTON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
HAMILTON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
12.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
Holgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
Holgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
Methodist

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
NEW LANE



ROAD NARROWING

BUILD-OUTS

WEST BANK

PARK ACCESS

GUARDRAIL

TS1

TS2

EXISTING

CROSSING POINT

PRIORITY

WORKING

JUNCTION

MARKINGS

TRAFFIC SIGNS

TS1 TS2

REV AMENDMENTS

CHECK

Transport Projects

Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS

www.york.gov.uk

C:\Users\francda\Desktop\DAF Documents\Drawings\New Lane (Acomb)\ANNEX D-New Lane (Acomb) Speed Management Study - Road Narrowing.dwg

DATE DRAWN

SCALE

DATE

DRAWN

NEW LANE (ACOMB)

SPEED MANAGEMENT STUDY

ROAD NARROWING

R00000 / 99999

MD

DAF

MAY 2022

1:250

ANNEX D

Page 88

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
West Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
HILL STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
Park



PS1 AND PS2

MOUNTED ABOVE

EXISTING 20mph SIGN ON

EXISTING POST

(EXISTING POST TO BE

EXTENDED)

PS1

PS2

EXISTING

PS3 AND PS4

MOUNTED ABOVE

EXISTING 20mph SIGN ON

EXISTING POST

(EXISTING POST TO BE

EXTENDED)

PS3

PS4

EXISTING

PS7

PS8

PS7 AND PS8

ON NEW POST

PS5

PS6

PS5 AND PS6

ON NEW POST

BACK TO BACK WITH

DIAG NO. 615 AND 615.1

Transport Projects

Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS

www.york.gov.uk

c CROWN COPYRIGHT.City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818

CHECKED BY

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE

A2

REV
INITIAL

DATE

AMENDMENT

C:\Users\francda\Desktop\DAF Documents\Drawings\New Lane (Acomb)\ANNEX E-New Lane (Acomb) Speed Management Study - Partial Road Hump Scheme.dwg

DAF

MD

1:1000, 1:500

MAY 2022

NEW LANE (ACOMB) - SPEED MANAGEMENT STUDY

PARTIAL ROAD HUMP SCHEME

R00000 / 99999

ROAD HUMP

FOR DETAILS REFER

TO YCC STANDARD

DRAWING STD-07-05

ROAD HUMP

FOR DETAILS REFER

TO YCC STANDARD

DRAWING STD-07-05

ROAD HUMP

FOR DETAILS REFER

TO YCC STANDARD

DRAWING STD-07-05

INSET B

PLAN LAYOUT

INSET A INSET C

INSET A

INSET B

INSET C

ANNEX E

P
age 89

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
Holgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
(Club)

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
Holgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
Methodist

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
MURRAY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
ACOMB ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
15.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
Bowling Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
HAMILTON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
Holgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
Play

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
Sports

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
Memorial

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
WINDMILL RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
HOLGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
17.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
West Bank Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
(disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
Windmill

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
Holgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
HILL STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
NORTHCOTE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
HAMILTON WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
12.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
CAMPBELL AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
HAMILTON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
HAMILTON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
HAMILTON WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
12.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
West Bank Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
NEW LANE



EXISTING 20/30

TERMINAL SIGNS

PROPOSED 20mph

REPEATER SIGNS

EXISTING 20mph

REPEATER SIGNS

PROPOSED 20mph

REPEATER SIGNS

EXISTING 20mph

REPEATER SIGNS

EXISTING 20/30

TERMINAL SIGNS

A3

D
r
a
w

n

C
h
e
c
k
e
d

SCALE

BASED UPON THE ORDNANCE SURVEY MAPPING WITH THE 

PERMISSION OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY'S STATIONERY 

OFFICE  c  CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION 

INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION 

OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.

City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818

DATE

REV AMENDMENTS
DATE

Transport Projects

Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS

www.york.gov.uk

C:\Users\francda\Desktop\DAF Documents\Drawings\New Lane (Acomb)\ANNEX F-New Lane (Acomb) Speed Management Study - Additional 20mph Signing.dwg

NEW LANE (ACOMB)

SPEED MANAGEMENT STUDY - ADDITIONAL 20mph SIGNING

DRAWING_No

DRAWN BY

DAF

1:1250

MAY 2022

ANNEX F

Page 90

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
Holgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
(Club)

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
Holgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
Methodist

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
MURRAY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
LINDLEY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
13.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
ACOMB ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
15.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
Bowling Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
NURSERY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
JAMES BACKHOUSE PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
152

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
PCs

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
146

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
14.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
HAMILTON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
137

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
Holgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
Play

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
Sports

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
Memorial

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
18.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
ACOMB ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
of Latter-Day Saints

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
Day Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
HOLGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
148

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
17.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
West Bank Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
Church of Jesus Christ

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
Beech Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
BARRETT AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
HILL STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
NORTHCOTE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
HAMILTON WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
12.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
10.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
10.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
HAMILTON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
HAMILTON DRIVE



PROPOSED

GUARDRAIL

WEST BANK

PARK ACCESS

REV AMENDMENTS

CHECK

Transport Projects

Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS

www.york.gov.uk

C:\Users\francda\Desktop\DAF Documents\Drawings\New Lane (Acomb)\ANNEX G-New Lane (Acomb) Speed Management Study - Pedestrian Guardrail Scheme.dwg

DATE DRAWN

SCALE

DATE

DRAWN

NEW LANE (ACOMB)

SPEED MANAGEMENT STUDY

PEDESTRIAN GUARDRAIL SCHEME

R00000 / 99999

MD

DAF

MAY 2022

1:250

ANNEX G

Page 91

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
West Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
HILL STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
Park



O
N

 N
E

W
 P

O
S

T

O
N

 N
E

W
 P

O
S

T

3.0m

N
e

w
 h

um
p

 w
arn

in
g signs to be

in
sta

lle
d on

 bo
th

 a
pp

roaches

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

2
0

M
P

H
 S

IG
N

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

2
0

M
P

H
 S

IG
N

IN
S

E
T

 B

P
LA

N
 LA

Y
O

U
T

IN
S

E
T

 A
IN

S
E

T
 C

T
ra

nsp
o

rt P
ro

je
cts

E
co

 D
e

p
o

t, H
a

ze
l C

o
u

rt, Ja
m

e
s S

tre
e

t, Y
o

rk, Y
O

1
0

 3
D

S
w

w
w

.yo
rk.g

o
v.u

k

c C
R

O
W

N
 C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
.C

ity o
f Y

o
rk C

o
u

n
cil O

S
 Licence N

o. 1000 20818

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y

D
A

T
E

S
C

A
L

E

A
3

R
E

V
IN

IT
IA

L
D

A
T

E
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

L
:\D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
\T

ra
n

sp
o

rt P
ro

je
cts\P

ro
je

cts\1
0

 - S
a

fe
ty &

 A
cce

ssib
ility S

ch
e

m
e

s\S
p

e
e

d
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t\2
0

_
2

1
\3

. Y
K

1
9

1
2

0
3

0
 N

e
w

 L
a

n
e

 A
co

m
b

\D
ra

w
in

g
s\F

o
r C

o
nsultation\E

xternal C
onsultation D

w
g

s\O
P

T
IO

N
 1 +

 2 - N
ew

 Lane A
com

b P
artial R

oad H
um

p S
chem

e.dw
g

B
P

N
T

S
N

E
W

 LA
N

E
, A

C
O

M
B

S
P

E
E

D
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 S

C
H

E
M

E
O

P
T

IO
N

 1
 - S

P
E

E
D

 H
U

M
P

 S
C

H
E

M
E

H
E

D
/2

0
00

1
6

/N
L

/E
X

/0
1

O
P

T
IO

N
 1

IN
S

E
T

 A

IN
S

E
T

 B

IN
S

E
T

 C

 D
W

G
 N

o.

B
O

L
T

D
O

W
N

 R
U

B
B

E
R

R
O

A
D

 H
U

M
P

B
O

L
T

D
O

W
N

 R
U

B
B

E
R

R
O

A
D

 H
U

M
P

B
O

L
T

D
O

W
N

 R
U

B
B

E
R

R
O

A
D

 H
U

M
P

H
U

M
P

 W
A

R
N

IN
G

S
IG

N
S

Page 92

ddttsbp_1
Text Box
ANNEX 2



O
N

 N
E

W
 P

O
S

T

O
N

 N
E

W
 P

O
S

T

O
N

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

L
IG

H
T

IN
G

C
O

LU
M

N
O

N
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
L

IG
H

T
IN

G
 C

O
LU

M
N

3
.0m

N
e

w
 h

um
p

 w
arn

ing sign
s to

 be
in

sta
lle

d o
n bo

th
 a

pp
ro

ache
s

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

2
0

M
P

H
 S

IG
N

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

2
0

M
P

H
 S

IG
N

B
O

L
T

D
O

W
N

 R
U

B
B

E
R

R
O

A
D

 H
U

M
P

IN
S

E
T

 B

P
LA

N
 L

A
Y

O
U

T

IN
S

E
T

 A
IN

S
E

T
 C

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt P

rojects
E

co
 D

ep
ot, H

a
ze

l C
o

urt, Jam
es S

tree
t, Y

ork, Y
O

10 3D
S

w
w

w
.york.gov.uk

c C
R

O
W

N
 C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
.C

ity o
f Y

o
rk C

o
u

n
cil O

S
 Licence N

o. 1
000 20

818

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y

D
A

T
E

S
C

A
L

E

A
3

R
E

V
IN

IT
IA

L
D

A
T

E
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

L
:\D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
\T

ra
nspo

rt P
ro

je
cts\P

rojects\1
0 - S

a
fe

ty &
 A

ccessibility S
ch

em
es\S

pe
ed

 m
an

ag
em

en
t\20

_2
1\3. Y

K
1

91
20

30
 N

ew
 L

an
e A

com
b\D

raw
in

gs\F
or C

on
su

ltatio
n\E

xte
rn

al C
on

su
ltatio

n D
w

gs\O
P

T
IO

N
 1 +

 2 - N
e

w
 La

ne
 A

co
m

b
 P

artial R
oa

d H
u

m
p S

chem
e.dw

g

B
P

N
T

S
N

E
W

 L
A

N
E

, A
C

O
M

B
S

P
E

E
D

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 S
C

H
E

M
E

O
P

T
IO

N
 2

 - S
P

E
E

D
 H

U
M

P
 S

C
H

E
M

E
 W

IT
H

C
R

O
S

S
IN

G
 P

O
IN

T
 IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
H

E
D

/2
000

1
6/N

L
/E

X
/02

O
P

T
IO

N
 2

IN
S

E
T

 A

IN
S

E
T

 B

IN
S

E
T

 C

 D
W

G
 N

o.

B
u

ild
o

u
ts to create

lo
ca

lised road
n

a
rro

w
in

g
 w

ith crossing
p

oint

6
M

 Le
ng

th
 o

f gu
ardrail

A
d

d
itio

n
a

l ro
a

d m
arkings to

visu
a

lly re
d

u
ce

 th
e radius of the

ju
n

ction.

B
O

L
T

D
O

W
N

 R
U

B
B

E
R

R
O

A
D

 H
U

M
P

B
O

L
T

D
O

W
N

 R
U

B
B

E
R

R
O

A
D

 H
U

M
P

Page 93

ddttsbp_2
Text Box
ANNEX 3



EXISTING 20/30
TERMINAL SIGNS

PROPOSED 20mph
REPEATER SIGNS

EXISTING 20mph
REPEATER SIGNS

PROPOSED 20mph
REPEATER SIGNS

EXISTING 20mph
REPEATER SIGNS

EXISTING 20/30
TERMINAL SIGNS

20mph signs
Terminal signs  - 450mm diameter
Repeater signs - 300mm diameter

A3

D
ra

w
n

C
he

ck
ed

SCALEBASED UPON THE ORDNANCE SURVEY MAPPING WITH THE 
PERMISSION OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY'S STATIONERY 
OFFICE  c  CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION 
INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION 
OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.
City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818

DATE

REV AMENDMENTS DATE

Transport Projects
Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS
www.york.gov.uk

L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Speed management\20_21\3. YK1912030 New Lane Acomb\Drawings\For Consultation\External Consultation Dwgs\Option 3 - New Lane Acomb - Additional 20mph Signing.dwg

NEW LANE, ACOMB - SPEED MANAGEMENT SCHEME
OPTION 3 - SIGNING ONLY

HED/200016/NL/EX/03

BP

NTS

30/01/2023

OPTION 3

Page 94

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
Holgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
(Club)

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
Holgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
Methodist

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
MURRAY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
LINDLEY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
13.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
ACOMB ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
Bowling Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
NURSERY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
JAMES BACKHOUSE PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
152

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
PCs

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
146

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
14.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
HAMILTON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
137

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
Holgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
Play

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
Sports

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
Memorial

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
ACOMB ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
of Latter-Day Saints

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
Day Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
HOLGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
148

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
West Bank Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
Church of Jesus Christ

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
Beech Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
BARRETT AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
HILL STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
NORTHCOTE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
HAMILTON WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
10.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
HAMILTON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
HAMILTON DRIVE

ddttsbp_3
Text Box
ANNEX 4




 

Corporate Director of Place - Neil Ferris 

 
 

Place Directorate 
 
City of York Council 
West Offices 
Station Rise 
York  
YO1 6GA 

 
 
 
 

Our Ref: 200016_NL_01 
3 March 2023 

Dear Resident, 
 

Consultation: New Lane, Acomb – Speed Management Proposals 
 
A recent speed concern report and petition has led to a review of vehicle 
speeds on New Lane. City of York Council are now considering options 
for speed reducing measures on the street and we are writing to you to 
gather your views on the options and for your preference. 
 
New Lane has a signed 20mph speed limit. The target for this type of street 
is mean speeds of 20mph or less, and 85th percentile speeds (the speed 
at or below which 85 percent of people drive) of 24mph or lower.  
 
To gain a better understanding of the speed profile for the full length of the 
street speed surveys were undertaken at three locations. A summary of 
the speed data is shown on an attached plan. The results indicate that 
through the northern section vehicle speeds are within the expected 
range. South of the Hill Street junction the mean speeds are still 
acceptable, but the 85th percentile speeds for southbound traffic increases 
close to the Hill Street junction and beyond.  
 
To help reduce vehicle speeds three options are now being considered. 
As the highest vehicle speeds are on the southern section of New Lane 
any proposed physical traffic calming measures are contained to this end 
of the street. The proposed options are described below and drawings for 
each scheme are attached to illustrate the proposals:  
 
Option 1: Traffic Calming.  
A series of three speed humps on the southern half of the street along with 

the relevant signing.  

Option 2: Traffic Calming and crossing point improvement.  
A series of three speed humps on the southern half of the street along with 

the relevant signing. In addition, a localised narrowing of the carriageway 

Page 95

ddttsbp_4
Text Box
ANNEX 5



 

Corporate Director of Place - Neil Ferris 

to a single lane, this creates an opportunity to provide a better crossing 

point in the vicinity of the access to West Bank Park. A section of guardrail 

to slow pedestrians as they approach the carriageway is also proposed.  

Option 3: Signs only. 
Eight additional repeater signs to be provided the full length of New Lane 

to support the existing signage.   

 

We are now seeking residents’ views which will be presented to the 
Executive Member for Transport to help decide which option proceeds. 
The deadline for responses is Friday 24th March 2023. Please provide 
any feedback in writing or via email to ben.potter@york.gov.uk.  
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
Ben Potter 
Engineer 
Highways Engineering Design 
 

 
 

Page 96

mailto:ben.potter@york.gov.uk


Lamp Column 4 (between Hill Street and Acomb Road)
Mean speeds - 20mph northward, 20mph southwards
85th%ile speeds - 24mph northward, 25mph southwards

Lamp Column 8 (at the Hill Street junction)
Mean speeds - 16mph northward, 21mph southwards
85th%ile speeds - 24mph northward, 28mph southwards

Lamp Column 11 (between Hill Street and Hamilton Drive)
mean speeds - 23mph northward, 22mph southwards
85th%ile speeds - 27mph northward, 27mph southwards

REV AMENDMENTS

CHECK

Highways Engineering Design
Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS
www.york.gov.uk

L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Speed management\20_21\3. YK1912030 New Lane Acomb\Consultation\External\Speed survey information.dwg

DATE DRAWN

SCALE

DATE

DRAWN

NEW LANE SPEED MANAGEMENT SCHEME
SPEED SURVEY DATA SUMMARY

HED/200016/NL/SSD
B Potter

23/02/2023

NTS

SPEED SURVEY DATA SUMMARY
Page 97



O
N

 N
E

W
 P

O
S

T

O
N

 N
E

W
 P

O
S

T

3
.0m

3
.0m

N
e

w
 h

um
p

 w
arn

ing sign
s to

 be
in

sta
lle

d o
n bo

th
 a

pp
ro

ache
s

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

2
0

M
P

H
 S

IG
N

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

2
0

M
P

H
 S

IG
N

IN
S

E
T

 B

P
LA

N
 L

A
Y

O
U

T

IN
S

E
T

 A
IN

S
E

T
 C

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt P

rojects
E

co
 D

ep
ot, H

a
ze

l C
o

urt, Jam
es S

tree
t, Y

ork, Y
O

10 3D
S

w
w

w
.york.gov.uk

c C
R

O
W

N
 C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
.C

ity o
f Y

o
rk C

o
u

n
cil O

S
 Licence N

o. 1
000 20

818

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y

D
A

T
E

S
C

A
L

E

A
3

R
E

V
IN

IT
IA

L
D

A
T

E
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

L
:\D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
\T

ra
nspo

rt P
ro

je
cts\P

rojects\1
0 - S

a
fe

ty &
 A

ccessibility S
ch

em
es\S

pe
ed

 m
an

ag
em

en
t\20

_2
1\3. Y

K
1

91
20

30
 N

ew
 L

an
e A

com
b\D

raw
in

gs\F
or C

on
su

ltatio
n\E

xte
rn

al C
on

su
ltatio

n D
w

gs\O
P

T
IO

N
 1 +

 2 - N
e

w
 La

ne
 A

co
m

b
 P

artial R
oa

d H
u

m
p S

chem
e.dw

g

B
P

N
T

S
N

E
W

 L
A

N
E

, A
C

O
M

B
S

P
E

E
D

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 S
C

H
E

M
E

O
P

T
IO

N
 1

 - S
P

E
E

D
 H

U
M

P
 S

C
H

E
M

E
H

E
D

/2
000

1
6/N

L
/E

X
/01

O
P

T
IO

N
 1

IN
S

E
T

 A

IN
S

E
T

 B

IN
S

E
T

 C

 D
W

G
 N

o.

B
O

L
T

D
O

W
N

 R
U

B
B

E
R

R
O

A
D

 H
U

M
P

B
O

L
T

D
O

W
N

 R
U

B
B

E
R

R
O

A
D

 H
U

M
P

B
O

L
T

D
O

W
N

 R
U

B
B

E
R

R
O

A
D

 H
U

M
P

H
U

M
P

 W
A

R
N

IN
G

S
IG

N
S

Page 98



O
N

 N
E

W
 P

O
S

T

O
N

 N
E

W
 P

O
S

T

O
N

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

L
IG

H
T

IN
G

C
O

LU
M

N
O

N
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
L

IG
H

T
IN

G
 C

O
LU

M
N

3
.0m

N
e

w
 h

um
p

 w
arn

ing sign
s to

 be
in

sta
lle

d o
n bo

th
 a

pp
ro

ache
s

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

2
0

M
P

H
 S

IG
N

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

2
0

M
P

H
 S

IG
N

B
O

L
T

D
O

W
N

 R
U

B
B

E
R

R
O

A
D

 H
U

M
P

IN
S

E
T

 B

P
LA

N
 L

A
Y

O
U

T

IN
S

E
T

 A
IN

S
E

T
 C

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt P

rojects
E

co
 D

ep
ot, H

a
ze

l C
o

urt, Jam
es S

tree
t, Y

ork, Y
O

10 3D
S

w
w

w
.york.gov.uk

c C
R

O
W

N
 C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
.C

ity o
f Y

o
rk C

o
u

n
cil O

S
 Licence N

o. 1
000 20

818

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y

D
A

T
E

S
C

A
L

E

A
3

R
E

V
IN

IT
IA

L
D

A
T

E
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

L
:\D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
\T

ra
nspo

rt P
ro

je
cts\P

rojects\1
0 - S

a
fe

ty &
 A

ccessibility S
ch

em
es\S

pe
ed

 m
an

ag
em

en
t\20

_2
1\3. Y

K
1

91
20

30
 N

ew
 L

an
e A

com
b\D

raw
in

gs\F
or C

on
su

ltatio
n\E

xte
rn

al C
on

su
ltatio

n D
w

gs\O
P

T
IO

N
 1 +

 2 - N
e

w
 La

ne
 A

co
m

b
 P

artial R
oa

d H
u

m
p S

chem
e.dw

g

B
P

N
T

S
N

E
W

 L
A

N
E

, A
C

O
M

B
S

P
E

E
D

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 S
C

H
E

M
E

O
P

T
IO

N
 2

 - S
P

E
E

D
 H

U
M

P
 S

C
H

E
M

E
 W

IT
H

C
R

O
S

S
IN

G
 P

O
IN

T
 IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
H

E
D

/2
000

1
6/N

L
/E

X
/02

O
P

T
IO

N
 2

IN
S

E
T

 A

IN
S

E
T

 B

IN
S

E
T

 C

 D
W

G
 N

o.

B
u

ild
o

u
ts to create

lo
ca

lised road
n

a
rro

w
in

g
 w

ith crossing
p

oint

6
M

 Le
ng

th
 o

f gu
ardrail

A
d

d
itio

n
a

l ro
a

d m
arkings to

visu
a

lly re
d

u
ce

 th
e radius of the

ju
n

ction.

B
O

L
T

D
O

W
N

 R
U

B
B

E
R

R
O

A
D

 H
U

M
P

B
O

L
T

D
O

W
N

 R
U

B
B

E
R

R
O

A
D

 H
U

M
P

Page 99



EXISTING 20/30
TERMINAL SIGNS

PROPOSED 20mph
REPEATER SIGNS

EXISTING 20mph
REPEATER SIGNS

PROPOSED 20mph
REPEATER SIGNS

EXISTING 20mph
REPEATER SIGNS

EXISTING 20/30
TERMINAL SIGNS

20mph signs
Terminal signs  - 450mm diameter
Repeater signs - 300mm diameter

A3

D
ra

w
n

C
he

ck
ed

SCALEBASED UPON THE ORDNANCE SURVEY MAPPING WITH THE 
PERMISSION OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY'S STATIONERY 
OFFICE  c  CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION 
INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION 
OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.
City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818

DATE

REV AMENDMENTS DATE

Transport Projects
Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS
www.york.gov.uk

L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Speed management\20_21\3. YK1912030 New Lane Acomb\Drawings\For Consultation\External Consultation Dwgs\Option 3 - New Lane Acomb - Additional 20mph Signing.dwg

NEW LANE, ACOMB - SPEED MANAGEMENT SCHEME
OPTION 3 - SIGNING ONLY

HED/200016/NL/EX/03

BP

NTS

30/01/2023

OPTION 3

Page 100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
Holgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
(Club)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
Holgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
Methodist

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
MURRAY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
LINDLEY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
13.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
ACOMB ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
Bowling Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
NURSERY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
JAMES BACKHOUSE PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
152

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
PCs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
146

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
14.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
HAMILTON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
137

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
Holgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
Play

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
Sports

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
Memorial

AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
ACOMB ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
of Latter-Day Saints

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
Day Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_1141
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1142
HOLGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1143
148

AutoCAD SHX Text_1144
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_1145
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1146
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1147
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1148
West Bank Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1149
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1150
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1151
Church of Jesus Christ

AutoCAD SHX Text_1152
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1153
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1154
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1155
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1156
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1157
Beech Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1158
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1159
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1160
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1161
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1162
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1163
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1164
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1165
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1166
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1167
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1168
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1169
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1170
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1171
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1172
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_1173
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1174
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1175
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1176
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1177
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1178
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1179
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1180
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1181
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_1182
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1183
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1184
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1185
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1186
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1187
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1188
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1189
BARRETT AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1190
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1191
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_1192
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_1193
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1194
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1195
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1196
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1197
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_1198
HILL STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1199
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1200
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1201
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1202
NORTHCOTE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1203
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_1204
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1205
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1206
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1207
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1208
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_1209
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_1210
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_1211
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1212
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_1213
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_1214
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1215
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1216
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1217
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1218
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1219
HAMILTON WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1220
10.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1221
HAMILTON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1222
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1223
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1224
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1225
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1226
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1227
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1228
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1229
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1230
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1231
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1232
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1233
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1234
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1235
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1236
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1237
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1238
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1239
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1240
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1241
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1242
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1243
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1244
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1245
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1246
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1247
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1248
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1249
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1250
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1251
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1252
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1253
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1254
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1255
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1256
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1257
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1258
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1259
NEW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1260
HAMILTON DRIVE



REV AMENDMENTS

CHECK

Highways Engineering Design
Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS
www.york.gov.uk

L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Speed management\20_21\3. YK1912030 New Lane Acomb\Drawings\Consultation area.dwg

DATE DRAWN

SCALE

DATE

DRAWN

New Lane, Acomb 
Speed Management Scheme
Consultation Area

HED-NL- CONAREA
B POTTER

01/02/2023

NTS

CONSULTATION
AREA

Page 101

ddttsbp_5
Text Box
ANNEX 6



 
 

City of York Council 

Equalities Impact Assessment 
 

 

Who is submitting the proposal?  
 

 
 

Directorate: 
 

Place 

Service Area: 
 

Highways Asset Management 

Name of the proposal : 
 

New Lane (Acomb) Speed Management Scheme 

Lead officer: 
 

Mike Durkin / Ben Potter 

Date assessment completed: 
 

03/05/2023 

Names of those who contributed to the assessment : 

Name                                             Job title Organisation  Area of expertise 

Mike Durkin Engineer 
(Highways Engineering 
Design) 

CYC Transport engineering and 
road safety 

Ben Potter Engineer 
(Highways Engineering 
Design) 

CYC Highways engineering and 
road safety 

P
age 102

ddttsbp_6
Text Box
ANNEX 7



 
 

 
Step 1 – Aims and intended outcomes   

 

 
 

1.1 What is the purpose of the proposal? 
Please explain your proposal in Plain English avoiding acronyms and jargon.  

 Speed Management Schemes (SMS) are part of the Council’s speed review process, carried out in partnership 
with North Yorkshire Police, which provides a framework for responding to complaints about traffic speed.  
 
The aim of this specific scheme is to review to operation of the existing 20mph speed restriction along New 
Lane in Acomb, develop and assess options for improving driver compliance, and implement a suitable 
solution.   
 

1.2 Are there any external considerations? (Legislation/government directive/codes of practice etc.) 

   

Department for Transport Circular 01/2013 -  SETTING LOCAL SPEED LIMITS 

 

Local Transport Note 1/07  -  TRAFFIC CALMING 

 

P
age 103



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1.3 Who are the stakeholders and what are their interests? 
 

 CYC  -  as the Highway Authority responsible for road safety and setting speed limits. 
Local Residents - can be affected both by traffic speeds and the measures introduced to control them.  
Ward Councillors - they represent the local residents and can help get appropriate action taken. 
North Yorkshire Police – the scheme is derived from a long-standing speed management partnership. 

 

1.4 What results/outcomes do we want to achieve and for whom?  This section should explain what 
outcomes you want to achieve for service users, staff and/or the wider community. Demonstrate how the 
proposal links to the Council Plan (2019- 2023) and other corporate strategies and plans. 

 
 
 

Reduction in the speed of vehicles to improve the area for local residents and other road users, particularly in 
terms of road safety, and to ensure greater compliance with the signed speed limit. 
 

  

P
age 104



Step 2 – Gathering the information and feedback   
 

2.1  What sources of data, evidence and consultation feedback do we have to help us understand the 
impact of the proposal on equality rights and human rights? Please consider a range of sources, 
including: consultation exercises, surveys, feedback from staff, stakeholders, participants, research reports, 
the views of equality groups, as well your own experience of working in this area etc. 

 Source of data/supporting evidence Reason for using  

Speed surveys 
 

For substantiation of perceived speeding problems and assessing the 
need for improvements to reduce the speeding issues. Automatic 
measuring equipment was used to record speeds over a full week for 
both directions of travel at each of three survey sites along the street.  

 
On-site observations 

The Designer, who is a very experienced Traffic Engineer, spent several 
hours on-site observing traffic conditions and gaining an appreciation of 
how the street operates. 

 
Designer’s experience  
 

The Designer considered a wide range of options for reducing vehicle 
speed, and from previous experience had a good understanding of how 
these could impact road users and other stakeholders. 

Consultation responses Local residents are the stakeholder group most effected by speed 
reduction measures so their opinions give us a good understanding of 
how the proposals will impact the local community. 
 
CYC Officers were also consulted giving a good range of opinions with 
regard the impact of the options presented. Additional issues on the 
street were also raised which were outside the scope of this scheme. 

Petition The receipt of a petition calling for action to reduce speeds helps us 
understand that there is support for measures on the street. However, it 
must be treated carefully and it is unclear where the signatures were 
gathered from.   

 

P
age 105



 
 
 
 

Step 3 – Gaps in data and knowledge  
  

 
 
 

Step 4 – Analysing the impacts or effects. 
 

4.1  Please consider what the evidence tells you about the likely impact (positive or negative) on people 
sharing a protected characteristic, i.e. how significant could the impacts be if we did not make any 
adjustments? Remember the duty is also positive – so please identify where the proposal offers 
opportunities to promote equality and/or foster good relations. 

Equality Groups  
and  
Human Rights.  

Key Findings/Impacts  Positive (+) 
Negative (-)  
Neutral (0)   

High (H) 
Medium (M) 
Low (L) 

3.1 What are the main gaps in information and understanding of the impact of your proposal?  Please 
indicate how any gaps will be dealt with. 

Gaps in data or knowledge  Action to deal with this  

There are not considered any significant technical gaps in 
information or understanding. The speed surveys, backed 
up by on-site observation, produced very robust data and 
understanding of the current situation. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 106



Age No Impacts 0 L 

Disability 
 

No Impacts 0 L 

Gender 
 

No Impacts 0 L 

Gender 
Reassignment 

No Impacts 0 L 

Marriage and civil 
partnership 

No Impacts 0 L 

Pregnancy  
and maternity  

No Impacts 0 L 

Race No Impacts 0 L 

Religion  
and belief 

No Impacts 0 L 

Sexual  
orientation  

No Impacts 0 L 

Other Socio-
economic groups 
including :  

Could other socio-economic groups be affected e.g. 
carers, ex-offenders, low incomes? 

 

Carer No Impacts 0 L 

Low income  
groups  

No Impacts 0 L 

Veterans, Armed 
Forces 
Community  

No Impacts 0 L 

P
age 107



Other  
 

   

Impact on human 
rights: 

  

List any human 
rights impacted. 

None 0 L 

 
 

Use the following guidance to inform your responses: 
 
Indicate: 

- Where you think that the proposal could have a POSITIVE impact on any of the equality groups like 

promoting equality and equal opportunities or improving relations within equality groups  

- Where you think that the proposal could have a NEGATIVE impact on any of the equality groups, i.e. it 

could disadvantage them 

- Where you think that this proposal has a NEUTRAL effect on any of the equality groups listed below i.e. it 

has no effect currently on equality groups. 

 

It is important to remember that a proposal may be highly relevant to one aspect of equality and not relevant to 
another. 
 
 

P
age 108



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

High impact 
(The proposal or process is very equality 
relevant) 

There is significant potential for or evidence of adverse impact 
The proposal is institution wide or public facing 
The proposal has consequences for or affects significant 
numbers of people  
The proposal has the potential to make a significant contribution 
to promoting equality and the exercise of human rights. 
 

Medium impact 
(The proposal or process is somewhat 
equality relevant) 

There is some evidence to suggest potential for or evidence of 
adverse impact  
The proposal is institution wide or across services, but mainly 
internal 
The proposal has consequences for or affects some people 
The proposal has the potential to make a contribution to 
promoting equality and the exercise of human rights 
 

Low impact 
(The proposal or process might be equality 
relevant) 

There is little evidence to suggest that the proposal could result in 
adverse impact  
The proposal operates in a limited way  
The proposal has consequences for or affects few people 
The proposal may have the potential to contribute to promoting 
equality and the exercise of human rights 
 

P
age 109



Step 5 - Mitigating adverse impacts and maximising positive impacts 
 
5.1 Based on your findings, explain ways you plan to mitigate any unlawful prohibited conduct or 

unwanted adverse impact. Where positive impacts have been identified, what is been done to 
optimise opportunities to advance equality or foster good relations? 

 
   No actions considered necessary. 
  
 
 
 

Step 6 – Recommendations and conclusions of the assessment 

 
 

6.1    Having considered the potential or actual impacts you should be in a position to make an 
informed judgement on what should be done. In all cases, document your reasoning that 
justifies your decision. There are four main options you can take: 

- No major change to the proposal – the EIA demonstrates the proposal is robust.  There is no                       
   potential for unlawful discrimination or adverse impact and you have taken all opportunities to  
   advance equality and foster good relations, subject to continuing monitor and review. 

P
age 110



- Adjust the proposal – the EIA identifies potential problems or missed opportunities. This involves taking 
steps to remove any barriers, to better advance quality or to foster good relations.  

 
- Continue with the proposal (despite the potential for adverse impact) – you should clearly set out the 

justifications for doing this and how you believe the decision is compatible with our obligations under the 
duty 

 
- Stop and remove the proposal – if there are adverse effects that are not justified and cannot be 

mitigated, you should consider stopping the proposal altogether. If a proposal leads to unlawful 
discrimination it should be removed or changed.  
 

Important: If there are any adverse impacts you cannot mitigate, please provide a compelling reason in the 
justification column. 

Option selected  Conclusions/justification  

 
No major change to the 
proposal 

 
 
 
 

 
Consideration of all the evidence gathered as part of scheme has not 
highlighted any potential for unlawful discrimination or adverse impacts. If the 
proposed measures are introduced monitoring of the situation would be 
continued, and opportunity for further review if unforeseen issues become 
apparent. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

  

P
age 111



Step 7 – Summary of agreed actions resulting from the assessment 
 
 

7.1  What action, by whom, will be undertaken as a result of the impact assessment. 

Impact/issue   Action to be taken  Person 
responsible  

Timescale 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 112



Step 8 - Monitor, review and improve 
 
 

 

 How will the impact of your proposal be monitored and improved upon going forward?   
Consider how will you identify the impact of activities on protected characteristics and other 
marginalised groups going forward? How will any learning and enhancements be capitalised 
on and embedded? 

  

• Customer feedback post-completion. 

• Road safety audit review post-completion. 

• Monitoring and review of accident records, if any. 

• Follow up speed surveys. 

The results of the above will provide a means of measuring the success of the scheme and identify if any 
further modifications may be required. 

 

P
age 113



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Declarations of Interest
	2 Minutes
	Minutes
	Transport EMDS - 14 March 2023
	Transport EMDS - 21 March 2023
	Minutes


	4 Bishopthorpe Road Respark Experimental TRO
	BR Annex A - R58 Option
	BR Annex B - Representations received for ETRO

	5 Decision to Consider a Consultation to Propose the Removal of Cash Payments From the Parking Estate
	CP Annex A - Cashless parking project - EIA

	6 New Lane, Acomb - Review of Existing 20mph Limit
	New Lane SMS - Annex 1-7
	Sheets and Views
	HC A3P

	Sheets and Views
	HC A3P

	Sheets and Views
	HC A2L bottom

	Sheets and Views
	A4P

	Sheets and Views
	HC A2L bottom

	Sheets and Views
	HC A3P

	Sheets and Views
	A4P

	Sheets and Views
	HC A3P

	Sheets and Views
	HC A3P




